


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 1a 



      

 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission September 7, 2022 Page 1 
 

JOINT MEETING 
MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL, PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION, 

 MIDDLETON URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (MURA) 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2022 

 
The Joint Meeting was called to order at on September 7, 2022, at 5:32 p.m. by Council 
President Rob Kiser.  
 
Roll Call:  
City Council: Council President Kiser, Council Members Huggins and O’Meara were present 
Council Member Murray was absent.  
P&Z Commission:  Chairman Waltemate, Commissioners Summers, Christiansen and Tremble 
were present. Commissioner Crofts was absent. 
MURA: Chairman Kiser, Commissioners Huggins and Waltemate were present. Commissioners 
Bishop and Lohrengel were absent.  
City Attorney Douglas Waterman, City Administrator Becky Crofts, City Treasure Wendy Miles, 
Public Works Director Jason Van Gilder and Deputy Clerks Jennica Reynolds and Amber Day 
were present. Mayor Rule was absent. MURA attorney Meghan Conrad entered at 5:41 p.m. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation: JoEllen Ringer 
 
Action Items  

A. Approve Amended Agenda 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve the agenda as posted September 6, 
2022, at 10:15 a.m. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara and approved 
unanimously by all the board members present. 
 

Joint Workshop: Workshop to discuss Urban Renewal  
City Administrator Becky Crofts, Public Works Director Jason VanGilder, City Attorney 
Douglas Waterman and MURA Attorney Meghan Conrad gave an update of the progress 
and next steps for the formation of the MURA East Revenue Allocation Area. Information 
was shared. No decisions were made. 

 
Adjourn Joint Meeting: Council President Kiser adjourned the Joint Meeting at 5:56 p.m. 
 
        
 
             
ATTEST:      Ray Waltemate, Chairman 
       Planning & Zoning Commission   
 
      
Jennica Reynolds, Deputy Clerk 
Minutes Approved: November 14, 2022 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 1b 



 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission, September 12, 2022  Page 1 of 4
  
 

MIDDLETON CITY PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 12, 2022 

 
Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call & Call to Order: The September 12, 2022, Planning and Zoning 
Commission Meeting was called to order by Vice Chairman Summers at 5:38 p.m. 
Commissioners Crofts, Christiansen and Tremble were present. Chairman Waltemate was 
absent. Planning & Zoning Official, Roberta Stewart and Planning Deputy Clerk, Jennica 
Reynolds and City Attorney Taylor Yett were also present.  
 
Information Items 
 

1. Middleton School District #134 status and information. – Superintendent Marc 
Gee. 

Superintendent Gee gave a presentation on Middleton School District #134 enrollment 
numbers and how they are planning to address population growth. 
 
Information was shared. No decisions or action was taken. 

 
Action Items: 
 

1. Consent Agenda (items of routine administrative business) 
a. Consider approving August 8, 2022, regular meeting minutes. 
b. Consider approving FCR for Hidden Mill Subdivision Preliminary Plat 
 

Motion: Motion by Commissioner Tremble to approve the consent agenda items 1a & b. 
Motion seconded by Commissioner Christiansen and passed unanimously. 

 
2. Design Review – Middleton Self Storage – Jennica Reynolds 

Planning Staff – Jennica Reynolds presented the Design Review application for Middleton 
Self Storage. The initial design review had been approved in 2019. According to MCC 
design review is valid for only 12 months, thus the re-application.  
 
Motion: Motion by Commissioner Christiansen to approve the Design Review for Middleton 
Self Storage with the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report from September 9, 
2019. Motion seconded by Commissioner Tremble and passed unanimously. 

 
3. Public Hearing: Application by Adam Capell/Toll Brothers Building Company & 

Nicolette Womack/Kimley-Horn Engineering for annexation and rezone, 
preliminary plat, and development agreement with respect to the Black Powder 
Subdivision located at 0 Cemetery Road, Middleton, Idaho (tax parcel no., 
R38207).  The annexation involves 40.28 acres of vacant land currently zoned 
County “Agricultural.” Applicants are requesting a rezone to R-3 (single family 
residential). The preliminary plat includes 105 single family home lots and 17 
common lots. – Roberta Stewart    

 
Vice Chairman Summers opened the public hearing at 6:05 p.m. 
 
City Planner Stewart presented a PowerPoint presentation of the Staff Report (Exhibit 1) 
 



 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission, September 12, 2022  Page 2 of 4
  
 

Ms. Stewart answered Commissioner questions regarding the Traffic Impact Study that will 
be complete early 2023. 
 
Applicant Representative Nicolette Womack – Kimley-Horn presented a slide show detailing 
the Black Powder Subdivision. (Exhibit 2) 
 
Ms. Womack and Ms. Stewart answered Commissioners questions regarding: the power 
poles in the right of way, pathways and pro-rata traffic fees and School District. 
 
Vice Chairman Summers opened the public testimony at 6:59 p.m. 
 
Nathan Hilkey: In Favor- Even if the property is not annexed it will be developed and the 

unincorporated County residents will use all the parks, roads and concerned about 
power poles. They were just moved. He wants to make sure developers pay their fair 
share. 

 
Applicant Rebuttal: Jeff Bowers – Applicant Representative – Toll Brothers does have a 
history of paying their fair share. They have paid $350,000 towards SH44/Cemetery Rd 
intersection. They will also pay the Mid/Star CIP traffic impact fee. Currently the TIS does 
not address pro-rata share.   
 
Vice Chairman Summers closed the public testimony at 7:06 p.m. 
 
Discussion by Commissioners regarding the traffic concerns and waiting for the City Traffic 
Study to be completed in 2023. Then look at the development.  

 
Motion: Motion by Commissioner Christiansen to recommend for denial to City Council an 
Application by Adam Capell/Toll Brothers Building Company & Nicolette Womack/Kimley-
Horn Engineering for annexation and rezone, preliminary plat, and development agreement 
with respect to the Black Powder Subdivision siting lack of information from the City Traffic 
Study to be completed 2023. Motion seconded by Commissioner Tremble. Motion approved 
by a 3-1 vote. Christiansen, Crofts, Tremble – Yes. Summers – No. 
 
Vice Chairman Summers closed the public hearing at 7:16 p.m. 
 
Vice Chairman Summers called for a brief recess at 7:16 p.m. The meeting resumed at 7:28 
p.m. 
 
4. Public Hearing: Application by Patrick Connor/Hubble Homes for preliminary plat 

and development agreement termination with respect to the Waterford East 
Subdivision located at 0 Foothills Road (Tax Parcel Nos. R338540 & R33854011). 
The proposed preliminary plat consists of 164 single family home lots, 14 
common lots, and 6 private lane lots on approximately 61 acres of vacant land 
zoned R-3 (Single-Family Residential). – Roberta Stewart 

 
Vice Chairman Summers opened the public hearing at 7:29 p.m. 
 
City Planner Stewart presented a PowerPoint presentation of the Staff Report (Exhibit 3) 
She introduced comment letter from the Richards received late and Exhibit F of the Staff 
Report into the record. 
 



 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission, September 12, 2022  Page 3 of 4
  
 

Ms. Stewart answered questions regarding prior annexation for this development and 
surrounding developments, preliminary plat compliance with city code and proposed stub 
roads. 
 
Vice Chairman Summers opened public testimony at 7:51 p.m. 
 
Applicant Patrick Connor – Hubble Homes presented a slide show detailing the proposed 
Waterford East Subdivision. (Exhibit 4) 
 
Mr. Connor answered questions from the Commissioners about possible ways to work with 
the school districts in the area to promote the funding of schools.  
 
Kasey Strohmeyer: Concerned about Middleton Mill Ditch and future plans for 9th Street. 

Roberta Stewart: Maps are found on the City website. 9th Street is planned as a collector 
road and will move traffic. 

Kristi Cox: Concerned about the stub road that connects to the middleton of her lot. Wants it 
to go away.  
Mikell Bartell: Concerned about traffic. 
John Syme: Concerned about traffic. 
Jerry Enos: Concerned about stub road and possible increase of traffic. 
Ken Pahlas: Wants to see help from developers to promote school districts and bonds. 
Concerned about stub road. Happy to see habitat preserved. 
Bruce Bayne: Concerned about the weeds he has had to deal with. Wants a stub road to his 
property. Concerned about irrigation/floodwater, as well as double story homes abutting his 
property. 
  
 
Applicant Rebuttal: Patrick Connor:  

• City’s pathway plan is to have access to slough. They are open to discussing safety 
fencing by the park. 

• Stub roads are required by City for to and through access and utility access. They 
will provide fencing across stub road to prevent people accessing the Cox property. 

• Doesn’t make sense to require single family housing when the properties abut large 
fields. 

• There was a problem with the weeds, but once they were made known to the 
developer, they have been taken care of within a week. 

• There is a 15 ft access easement for the drainage district on the plat. 
 

 Commissioner Christiansen: City cannot demand they build only single-story homes. But 
perhaps the builder could look into it.  
Mr. Connor: We want to be good neighbors and we can have conversations off-line. 
 
Vice Chairman Summers closed public testimony at 8:38 p.m. 
 
Discussion by Commissioners of stub road. 
Summers stated that the plat meets City code, the property is already annexed and zoned. 
There is no reason to deny the application. 
 
Motion: Motion by Commissioner Christiansen to recommend for approval to City Council 
the application by Patrick Connor/Hubble Homes for preliminary plat and development 
agreement termination with respect to the Waterford East Subdivision. Motion seconded by 



 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission, September 12, 2022  Page 4 of 4
  
 

Vice Chairman Summers.  
Vote: TIE 2:2 
Christiansen, Summers – Yes 
Crofts, Tremble – No. Crofts said it doesn’t feel right. Tremble denied based on the traffic 
and the Commission’s decision of the previous application. 
Application is recommended for denial due to a tie vote.  

 
Vice Chairman Summers closed the public hearing at 8:48 p.m. 

    
Public Comments, Commission and Staff Comments 
 
Kristi Cox – Asked about the timeline for this application to go to City Council. 
Mikel Bartol – Wants to see the City and County collaborate together. 
Ken Pahlas – The City Planner should not advise the commission. 
Jerry Enos – Wants to see larger lots in the city. 
 
Adjourn: Vice Chairman Summers adjourned the meeting at 8:58 p.m. 

 
 

  
             
       Heidal Summers, Vice Chairman  
 
 
                                                               
ATTEST: Jennica Reynolds  

    Deputy Clerk, Planning  
 
Approved: November 14, 2022  



 

EXHIBIT “1” 



11/10/2022

1

Black Powder Subdivision 
Annexation/Rezone, Preliminary Plat & Development Agreement  

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission
Public Hearing September 12, 2022

Project Description, Application & Zoning:

Single Family residential subdivision located at 0 Cemetery Road (tax parcel no., R38207).  The Project contains 105 single family 
home lots and 17 common lots on 40.28 acres of vacant land. The amenities include park with play structure, lawn, benches and
shade structure with picnic tables. 

Applicant Developer is seeking (1) annexation and rezone to R-3 (Single Family Residential), (2) Preliminary Plat approval, and (3) 
Development Agreement approval.

The property is currently vacant land in Canyon County zoned “Agricultural.” It is contiguous to Middleton City limits and is surrounded 
on three sides by City property zoned R-3.  To the north is County property zoned Agricultural.

City Services:  City water and sewer are accessible 
to the project. Sewer will connect to the sewer line in 
W. Highlands Phase 17.  Water will connect to a large 
water main in Cemetery Road.   

Sewer and water capacity are already included in 
current capacity analyses for this project. 

Pathways, Open Space & Amenities:  

Developer has provided open space in the 
form of a large landscaped common lot 
with play structure, benches, pathways, 
shade structure and picnic tables.  

There are also wide landscaped areas with 
pathways that separate the rear yards of 
the interior homes.  These common lots 
create a spacious landscaped buffer 
between homes while serving as 
connecting pathways.

These landscape pathways combined with 
the landscaped park area equal 6% open 
space. The City Code requires only a 
minimum of 5% open space.

Traffic, Access & Streets:  
Access to the subdivision is 
primarily off of Cemetery 
Road and the future 
Meadow Park Street.  
Connecting stub roads into 
W. Highlands Ranch are 
also on the west and south 
side of the plat.

Traffic, Access & Streets:  Much of Black Powder traffic will travel down 
Cemetery Road to Hwy 44.  City Engineer and City Staff are concerned 
with the intersection of Cemetery Road and Hwy 44. ITD owns and controls 
Hwy 44, and City does not have jurisdiction to mandate any traffic controls 
along Hwy 44.  ITD has renewed its environmental studies and traffic 
analyses of Hwy 44, but they have admitted that it may take up to 7 to 10 
years to determine long-term traffic solutions for Hwy 44.

In light of this protracted time-line, City Staff has requested ITD to 
collaborate on a smaller traffic study for Hwy 44 regarding interim traffic 
solutions that could alleviate current traffic congestion while ITD continues 
with its more comprehensive studies.  ITD has indicated a willingness to 
consider interim traffic controls, prompting City Council, last month, to 
approve a $93,000.00 Traffic Study.  This study will cover Hwy 44 from the 
Emmett Road intersection to the Duff Lane Intersection.  The Traffic Study 
should be completed in January/February 2023.   

Until the City can review the commissioned Traffic Study and determine 
whether there are interim traffic solutions acceptable to ITD, City Staff and 
Engineer would advise the governing bodies to deny, or at least be very 
cautious in approving, any new annexation projects, including the Black 
Powder annexation application.  

Hwy 44

Cemetery Rd

Traffic, Access & Streets:  City Staff further recommends denial of Black 
Powder based upon Developer’s traffic study for Black Powder. A review of 
the Traffic Study reveals that, in 2023, the Cemetery Road/Hwy 44 
intersection will operate at a Level of Service “D” (“LOS” D) at peak hours 
due to a difficult left turn lane.  (Kittelson Traffic Study, page 8) City Code 
requires intersections in Middleton to operate at a LOS “C”, so this 
intersection will shortly be below standard.  The problem may also be 
exacerbated by the recent opening of Jack in the Box. However, we will not 
have conclusive evidence of this impact until the City’s Traffic Study is 
completed in January 2023.  

Of note, Black Powder’s Traffic Study states at page 8 that installing a 
traffic signal at the intersection of Cemetery Road & SH 44 will raise the 
intersection to a LOS “C” during peak hours, thereby meeting City 
standards. 

** Black Powder is a relatively small project with a minor impact on the Hwy 
44 corridor.  However, Middleton’s current traffic congestion is created by 
the accumulation of numerous “minor” impacts.  The City is facing an 
integrated and “compounded” problem that will require a broad or 
comprehensive solution. The City’s recently commissioned Traffic Study 
should move the City closer to implementing that solution.  Until then, 
however, the City Staff and Engineer recommend denial of any new 
annexation projects. 

Hwy 44

Cemetery Rd

Streets & Access: However, if the Black Powder Subdivision is ultimately approved, 
Developer, at its own cost, will be required to construct the frontage improvements along 
Cemetery Road and the ½ road section of future Meadow Park Street.  Pursuant to MCC 5-4-
3, Developer will also be required to pay all pro-rata traffic fees and Mid-Star Transportation 
Impact fees to help improve intersections near the project site in the future.

The portion of Meadow Park Street to be constructed by Developer will lead to the future 
Meadow Park School Site. As a condition of approval, Developer should be required to stripe 
a crosswalk across Cemetery Road to ensure safe pedestrian access for children walking to 
school.   

Schools:  The Black Powder Subdivision is in the Middleton School District #134.  The City has no jurisdiction or control 
over the School system.  Instead, the City can only support and collaborate with the School officials to try to address the 
over-crowding problem experienced by the schools.  State law does not allow impact fees to fund new schools. In Idaho, 
new schools are generally built with bonds passed by the residents. In effect, the residents decide whether new 
schools will be built or not be built. Residents in Middleton and the surrounding County have not approved bonds for 
new schools for a number of years.

1 2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9



11/10/2022

2

Annexation and Rezone:  Applicant is requesting that the 40 acre 
project be annexed into the City of Middleton with a zone change 
to R-3 “Single Family Residential.” There are three findings that 
must be made before Annexation can be approved: 

1) The property must be contiguous to City limits.
2) City services such as sewer, water, schools, and 

transportation system can be extended to serve the site. 
3) The annexation is deemed to be an orderly development 

of the City allowing an efficient and economical extension 
of City services. (Idaho Code 50-222.)

An application for rezone requires two findings before the 
Commission can recommend approval: 

1) The rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of 
services such as sewer, water, schools, and roadway 
system. 

2) The rezone request is not in conflict with the 
Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho Code 67-6511)

Annexation and Rezone:  With respect to annexation, Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s 
project meets the criteria of contiguity and the requirement that city sewer and water be 
readily available. 

Planning Staff advises the governing bodies to carefully consider whether the proposed 
annexation is an “orderly development allowing the efficient and economical extension of 
services” and, specifically, whether the City’s roadway system can serve the site.  
Intersections along Hwy 44 may be deficient to serve the site.

As to the rezone application, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect 
the City’s ability to deliver sewer and water as already noted above. But, the project may 
adversely impact the roadway system, affecting the City’s ability to maintain a safe and 
viable roadway system.  This would be in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan’s Goals 
Nos. 1 & 3 to provide safe streets, pedestrian facilities, and adequate public services.

Staff cautions, however, that we cannot forget that a City generally needs growth and 
annexed property to remain healthy and vital. Moreover, many city roads are built by 
Developers (without taxpayer contribution), and Developers contribute millions of dollars in 
traffic fees that improve intersections and roads in Middleton.  Therefore, any solution or 
decision should be a balanced decision. 

We will not have a clear picture of the problem and any solutions for Hwy 44 until the Traffic 
Study is completed in early 2023.  Therefore, City Staff recommends that this 
Annexation/Rezone application be denied due to the lack of information on roadway 
services.

Preliminary Plat Application: The preliminary plat 
shows two phases of development. Planning Staff 
finds that the proposed preliminary plat complies with 
the Idaho State Statute and all the standards and 
dimensions set forth in the City Code for the R-3 
Zone. Applicant is not requesting any variances from 
Codes and Standards.  

The preliminary plat also provides less density than is 
permitted in City Code. Black Powder’s density is 
2.61 homes per gross acre, which is less than the 3 
homes per gross acre allowed by code. (MCC 5-4-1, 
Table 2). 

Development Agreement: A Development Agreement (“DA”) Application is generally 
required for any request to rezone property. The conditions of development set forth in the 
proposed DA are:

1. Developer will develop the community generally consistent with the concept plans 
attached to the DA.  

2. Developer will stripe a crosswalk at the intersection of Cemetery Road and Meadow 
Park Street to provide safe access across Cemetery Road to the future Meadow Park 
School site.

3. Developer to provide the following amenities: playground structure, benches, and 
shade structure with at least two picnic tables. 

4. Developer shall improve the half road sections of Cemetery Road and Meadow Park 
Street at its own cost.

5. Developer to pay all code required Pro-rata Share Traffic Fees pursuant to MCC 5-4-3.
6. Developers will have two years to obtain final plat approval for Phase 1. Developer 

may seek two 1-year extensions, thereby allowing a total of 4 years to bring Phase 1 to 
final plat approval.  After Phase 1 final plat, Developer will have two years to obtain 
final plat approval for Phase 2. This time period may also be extended with two 1-year 
extensions. Failure to meet these time-lines may result in the City terminating the DA 
and nullifying the preliminary plat.  

Of note, Planning Staff has had discussions with Developer about the traffic issues discussed earlier in this presentation.  Any assistance or 
collaboration between City and Developer can be memorialized in the DA for this project.  Developer has offered to pay its Mid-Star 
transportation fees in 2 lump sums at final plat for phases 1 and 2 rather than pay them over time with each building permit. The Mid-Star fees 
total $530,000. This would help fund the Mid-Star program quicker.  However, the Mid-Star fees are used at a myriad of intersections and 
roadways, so this accelerated funding may not effectively hasten any traffic solution for the specific intersection of Cemetery Road and SH 44. 

Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map:  
Applicant’s project complies with the 
Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use 
Map because the proposed R-3 zone 
correlates with the “Residential Use” 
shown on the FLUM.

As noted earlier, Applicant’s project is in conflict with Goals #1 and 
3 to provide safe roads and adequate delivery of services.  
However, the project does comply with the following Goals, 
Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive 
Plan as follows:

a. Goal 4: Project creates quality lots for residential use that 
increase the quality of life and general welfare of the City as a 
whole.  

b. Goal 6: Water, sewer, and adjacent local roads will be expanded 
in an orderly manner consistent with population growth.

c. Goal 10: Project provides playgrounds, pathways and outdoor 
recreational activities.

d. Goal 11: The housing type matches the residents’ lifestyle in the 
area the project is located. 

Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None

Comments from Agencies:  City received a comment from 
COMPASS in April 2022 and ITD in August 2022. A comment 
letter from Middleton School District #134 was received on 
9/8/2022. Copies of the letters were attached as Exhibit D to the 
Staff Report for public review and Commissioner consideration.  

Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff: Copies of 
Engineering and planning comments were attached as Exhibit “E” 
to the Staff Report.

Applicant Information:  Applicants are Adam Capell/Toll 
Brothers and Nicolette Womack/Kimley-Horn Engineering (3103 
W. Sheryl Dr. #100, Meridian 83642 / 950 W. Bannock Street, 
#1100, Boise, 83702).  Application was accepted on 1/25/2022.

Notices & Neighborhood Meeting Dates:

Newspaper Notification 8/28/2022             Sign Posting 8/23/2022

Radius notice to adjacent landowners 8/23/2022             Neighborhood Meeting                 1/10/2022

Circulation to Agencies 8/23/2022

Pertinent Codes and Standards:

Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction,
Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4, and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13.

Conclusions and Conditions of Approval:

The Planning & Zoning Commission is tasked with making recommendations to City Council to either deny or approve 
the Developer’s applications for (1) annexation/rezone, (2) development agreement, and (3) preliminary plat.

Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any final order or recommendation must be based upon findings of facts and 
conclusions of law.  

As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth findings of facts in the Staff Report and in this presentation. Staff 
also noted at great length that the governing boards should carefully consider whether approval of the Black Powder 
Subdivision will adversely affect the City’s ability to provide a safe and efficient roadway system and delivery of services.

Middleton’s current traffic situation is complicated, and it is further exacerbated by contending needs 
and requirements. Stopping growth may alleviate some traffic issues, but it can cause other problems.  
A solution may take study, time, and collaboration; therefore, City Staff recommends that no annexation 
projects be approved before City receives and reviews the Traffic Study for the Hwy 44 corridor.

As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the Planning & Zoning Commission has the 
authority to hear these applications and to recommend approval or denial of the applications.  
Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requirements were met. Planning Staff 
further set forth the portions of the Idaho State Code and Middleton City Code to be considered in 
making a recommendation on the applications.   

Annexation/rezone, Preliminary Plat, and Development Agreement Applications: Although City Staff has 
recommended against approval of this project, if the Commission is inclined to recommend approval of the 
annexation/rezone, preliminary plat, and development agreement applications, then Planning Staff recommends that 
any approval be subject to the following conditions: 

1. Developer to stripe a crosswalk at the intersection of Meadow Park Street and Cemetery Road to ensure a safe 
route for children to walk to the future Meadow Park School site. 

2. City municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services are to be extended to serve the subdivision.
3. Developer to comply with all terms of the Development Agreement approved for the project.
4. Developer to install landscaping and all amenities in compliance with the Landscape Plan and preliminary plat 

submitted with the application.
5. Developer shall create a plan for operation, maintenance and repair of stormwater facilities (O&M Plan) contained 

on the project site. The O&M Plan shall be recorded with the CC&Rs. Developer and/or HOA must maintain and 
operate the subdivision stormwater facilities in compliance with the O&M Plan.

6. Developer to construct, at its own cost, all frontage improvements on Cemetery Road and Meadow Park Street 
adjacent to the project parcel.

7. Owner/Developer to pay all City required pro-rata share traffic fees as required by MCC 5-4-3 prior to approval of 
final plat for Phase 1.

8. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved.
9. All Planner comments are to be completed and approved, including 8/30/22 agreement on setback note.
10. All requirements of the Middleton Rural Fire District are to be completed and approved.
11. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the construction drawings for the project.

** If Denial, explanation of what Applicant can do, if anything, to obtain a recommendation of approval.

10 11 12

13 14 15

16 17 18



 

EXHIBIT “2” 



11/10/2022

1

Black Powder Subdivision
September 12, 2022

Applicant Team
ADAM R. CAPELL
Toll Brothers
Meridian, ID

NICOLETTE WOMACK, AICP
Kimley-Horn
Boise, Idaho

KYLE PREWETT
Toll Brothers
Meridian, ID

MICHAEL O'REILLY, PE
Kimley-Horn
Boise, Idaho

BRANDON MCDOUGALD 
P.E., LEED AP 
Kimley-Horn
Boise, Idaho

JEFF BOWER
GIVENS PURSLEY LLP
Boise, Idaho

Before You Tonight

• Annexation & Rezone 

• Preliminary Plat

• Development Agreement
JUN 2021 –

Pre-App 
Meeting

SEPT 2021 –
Pre-App 
Meeting

JAN 2022 –
Neighborhood 

Meeting

APR 2022 –
Application 
Submitted

SEPT 2022 –
P&Z Hearing

Timeline

FALL 2022 
Design

FALL-SPRING 
2024 

Construction

SUMMER 2024 
Recording

FALL 2024 
Home Building

SUMMER 2025 
Occupancy 

Phase 1 
(49 lots)

FALL 2027 
Full Build Out 

Phase 2 
(56 lots)

Future Tentative Timeline

2020-2025 
MIDSTAR CIP 

Completion of HWY 
44 & Cemetery

Vicinity 
Map
• 40.28 acres

WEST HIGHLANDS RANCH

WEST HIGHLANDS 
RANCHSTONEHAVEN

DEL ROSARIO 
ESTATES

CROSSFIRE 
RANCH

FLOWER ESTATES

TAPESTRY

FIELDSTONE

WILLIS 
CREEK

PURPLE SAGE 
RANCHETTES

FAISAN 
POINTE

GREEN ESTATES

ESTATES AT 
MEADOW PARK

ESTATES AT 
WEST HIGHLANDS

POWDER 
RIVER

ELK 
ACRES

WEST HIGHLANDS 
RANCH

BRIDGER CREEK

SITE

WILLOW 
WOOD

Future Land Use Map Zoning Map

1 2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9



11/10/2022

2

Black 
Powder
Property Size: 40.28 acres

Total Units: 105

Density: 2.61 du/acre

Average 
Lot Size:

10,159 sq ft

MEADOW PARK STREET

CE
M

ET
ER

Y 
RO

AD
Black 
Powder

Phase 1: 49 lots

Phase 2: 56 lots

PHASE 1 

PHASE 2 

Black 
Powder

Qualified 
Open Space:

8.41% or 3.39 acres

Open Space: 12.49% or 5.03 acres

Amenities Large Park w/ play 
structure, shade 
ramada, benches and 
pathways

Central Amenity Concept Entry Monument 

• Consistent with West Highlands Ranch

Conceptual 
Elevations

Roadway Contributions

• 1/2 Street Improvements of Meadow Park Street 
(Leads to Future School Site)

• Stripe Crosswalk at Cemetery Road

• Improvements to Cemetery Road Frontage

• Pro-rata traffic fees to help improve intersections 
nearby

• $5,050 Transportation Impact Fee with every 
building permit ($530,000 Total) to be paid at 
start of each phase

ITD Comments Requested Action

• Recommendation of approval for the Annexation & Rezone, 
Preliminary Plat and Development Agreement

10 11 12

13 14 15

16 17 18



11/10/2022

3

Street Sections

19 20



 

EXHIBIT “3” 



11/10/2022

1

Waterford East 
Subdivision                    

Annexation/Rezone, Preliminary Plat
& Development Agreement  

Middleton Planning & 
Zoning Commission

0 Foothills Road (Tax Parcel Nos. R338540 & R33854011)

Project Description & Applications

Residential subdivision with 164 single family 
home lots, 14 common lots, and 6 private lane 
lots.  Amenities include landscaped park area 
with play structure and paved pathway that 
spans along the Mill Slough. 

Applications by Patrick Connor/Hubble Homes 
for (1) preliminary plat and (2) Development 
Agreement modification/termination.

Current Zoning & Property Conditions: The 
property was annexed into City Limits and 
rezoned R-3 (Single Family Residential) in 2006. 
A Development Agreement was executed in 2006 
pertaining to a proposed subdivision named 
“Paradise Valley.”  The Paradise Valley 
Subdivision was never developed, and the 
property has since been split into separate 
parcels and projects, including Waverly Park 
Subdivision and Waterford Subdivision, which 
were approved by the City of Middleton in 2021. 

The project parcel is surrounded on the west and 
north side by City R-3 and R-2 zones.  County 
parcels zoned “Agricultural” lie to the south and 
east of the project. 

The project contains a “string” or “panhandle” 
component.  It is used for access by the large 
ranch parcels to the north, so Developer will not 
be changing that portion of the project parcel.  

City Services:  City water and sewer are accessible 
to the project. The utilities are located in the right of 
way for “future” 9th Street. 

Sewer and water capacity for the project are already 
included in the City’s current capacity analyses. 

Traffic, Access & Streets: Access to the subdivision is primarily through Duff Lane and the future 9th Street collector. 
There will also be access through a local road in the adjacent Waterford Subdivision.  Finally, City Engineer is 
requiring a stub road to the south for future growth to the south and east.

Traffic, Access & Streets: As part of its frontage 
responsibilities, Developer will construct the 100’ wide 
section of 9th Street that transects the property in addition to 
the half-road portion of Albright Avenue to the west. This 
construction will be at Developer’s own cost.

Middleton requires Development “to pay for itself” so the 
taxpayers will not be burdened with the cost of developing 
roads and infrastructure.  In light of this, Developer/builders 
will pay $828,200.00 in Mid-Star Transportation Impact 
Fees by the time all 164 residential building permits are 
issued ($164 x $5050).  

Applicant has also completed a Traffic Study, and pursuant 
to the impact percentages set forth in the study, Applicant 
will pay $288,828.00 in additional “pro-rata traffic fees” 
pursuant to MCC 5-4-3. These fees cover the 
development’s direct impact on intersections near the 
project that are not already included in the Mid-Star 
program. Payment of this fee should be a condition of final 
plat approval for Phase 1.  

In total, Developer/Builder will pay a total of $1,117,028 
toward traffic improvements in and around the City of 
Middleton.

Pathway, Amenities & Open Space:
The Comprehensive Plan’s Transportation, Schools, and 
Recreation Map requires the Developer to construct a public 
pathway across the project parcel to connect to the public pathway 
in the Waverley Park Subdivision.  Developer has met this 
requirement with an 8’ wide asphalt paved pathway that follows the 
length of the Mill Slough.

Developer is also providing a landscaped park 
with play structure near the pathway system. 
City Code requires 5% open space. Developer 
has provided approximately 13% open space by 
converting the Slough into an attractive and 
usable walking path with park.

Schools:  The Waterford East Subdivision is in the Middleton School District #134.  The City has no jurisdiction or control over the 
School system.  Instead, the City can only support and collaborate with the School officials to try to address the over-crowding problem 
experienced by the schools.  State law does not allow impact fees to fund new schools. In Idaho, new schools are generally built with 
bonds passed by the residents. In effect, the residents decide whether new schools will be built or not be built. Residents in Middleton 
and the surrounding County have not approved bonds for new schools for a number of years.

Preliminary Plat: The preliminary plat shows three 
phases of development. It provides 164 single family 
home sites and 17 common lots. It provides less density 
than permitted in City Code. Waterford East’s density is 
2.67 homes per gross acre, which is less than the 3 
homes per gross acre allowed by code. (MCC 5-4-1, 
Table 2).

Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies 
with all standards and dimensions set forth in City Code 
and relevant state codes. Applicant is not requesting 
any variances or waivers.  

1 2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9



11/10/2022

2

Development Agreement: The Waterford East project parcel was 
originally part of a proposed subdivision in 2006 known as Paradise 
Valley. The Paradise Valley Subdivision had a Development 
Agreement that covered over 250 acres of land. Over the years, parts 
and pieces of the original Paradise Valley project have been sold and 
transferred to other developers and people. 

The Waterford Developer is seeking a termination of the 2006 
Paradise Valley Development Agreement, and City Staff supports that 
request.  The DA no longer has any relevance in light of the fact that 
most of the property from the original Paradise Valley parcel has been 
transferred or sold to others.  

Comprehensive Plan & 
Land Use Map:  Applicant’s 
project complies with the 
Comprehensive Plan’s 
Future Land Use Map 
because the proposed 
“Residential Use” matches 
the “Residential Use” shown 
on the FLUM.

Applicant’s project also complies with the Goals, 
Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton 
Comprehensive Plan as follows:

a. Goal 4: The project will establish a good 
quality of life with development that pays 
through impact fees and property taxes for the 
public services it receives when infrastructure 
is installed. Additionally, quality lots for 
residential use increase the quality of life and 
general welfare of the City.

b. Goal 6: Water, sewer, and road systems have 
been expanded in an orderly manner 
consistent with population growth. 

c. Goal 10: Project provides playgrounds and 
pathways that connect to a pedestrian system 
and provides outdoor recreational activities.

d. Goal 11: The housing type matches the 
residents’ lifestyle in the area the project is 
located. 

Additionally, the 
Comprehensive Plan’s 
Transportation, Schools & 
Recreation Map shows a 
public pathway traversing 
the project site. Developer’s 
preliminary plat shows the 
required pathway.

Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners: Staff received 
comments from Ms. Cox and Ms. Bucher on September 1, and 2, 2022. 
(Copies were attached to the Staff Report & Agenda for public viewing 
and Commissioner consideration.)

Comments from Agencies:  City received a comment letter from 
COMPASS on April 29th and a comment letter from Middleton School 
District #134 on September 8th.  Both comments were attached as 
Exhibit D to the Staff Report.  

Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff: Copies of 
Engineering and planning comments were attached as Exhibit “E” to the 
Staff Report.

Applicant Information:  Application was accepted on April 4, 2022. The 
applicant is Patrick Connor of Providence Properties/Hubble Homes –
701 S. Allen St. #104, Meridian ID

Notices & Neighborhood Meeting Dates:

Newspaper Notification 8/28/2022             Sign Posting 8/23/2022

Radius notice to adjacent landowners 8/23/2022             Neighborhood Meeting                 1/18/2022

Circulation to Agencies 8/23/2022

Pertinent Codes and Standards:

Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction,
Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4, and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapter 13.

Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:  The Planning & Zoning Commission is tasked with making a 
recommendation to City Council to either deny or approve the applications for preliminary plat and development agreement. The
recommendation can be with or without conditions of approval. Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any recommendation must be 
based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.  

As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth findings of facts in parentheses, both in the Staff Report and in this presentation.  If 
the Commission agrees with those findings of facts and further agrees with the general facts presented at the public hearing, then the 
Commission may simply affirm those findings while making the motion to approve or deny the applications. 

As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the Planning & Zoning Commission has the authority to hear these applications and to 
recommend approval or denial of the applications.  Additionally, Planning Staff confirms that all public notice requirements were met. 
Planning Staff further set forth the portions of the Idaho State Code and Middleton City Code to be considered in making the 
recommendation(s).   If the hearing tonight is conducted in compliance with Idaho State Statute and the Middleton City Code, then the 
Commission may affirm these conclusions of law while making a motion to approve or deny the applications.   

Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval con’t:

If the Commission is inclined to recommend approval of the preliminary plat and Development Agreement applications, then based upon 
the above findings of facts and conclusions of law, Planning Staff recommends that any approval be subject to the following conditions: 

1. City municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services are to be extended to serve the subdivision.
2. All pathways must be 8’ wide, paved with asphalt, and encumbered by a 12’ public access easement.  The noted dimensions shall

be clearly shown on the preliminary plat and set forth in a note to the preliminary plat. The HOA shall be responsible for the 
maintenance and repair of the pathways.  

3. All landscaping and amenities to be installed in compliance with the submitted landscape plan dated March 2022.
4. Developer shall create a plan for operation, maintenance and repair of stormwater facilities (O&M Plan) contained on the project

site. The O&M Plan shall be recorded with the CC&Rs. Developer and/or HOA must maintain and operate the subdivision 
stormwater facilities in compliance with the O&M Plan.

5. Owner/Developer to pay all City required pro-rata share traffic fees as required by MCC 5-4-3 prior to approval of final plat for 
phase 1.

6. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved.
7. All Planner comments are to be completed and approved.
8. All requirements of the Middleton Rural Fire District are to be completed and approved.
9. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the construction drawings for the project.

Finally, if the Commission recommends denial of the preliminary plat application, then pursuant to Middleton City Code 
1-14(E)(8), the Commission should state on the record what Applicant can do, if anything, to gain approval of the application(s).

Prepared by Roberta Stewart, Planning & Zoning Official Dated: 9/12/2022

10 11 12

13 14 15



 

EXHIBIT “4” 



Waterford East

City of Middleton
Planning and Zoning Commission 

September 12, 2022



Waterford East

This application is requesting 
approval of:
1. Preliminary Plat (164 SF lots)
2. Development Agreement 

Modification/Termination



Waterford East

1. Vicinity Map
2. Zoning Map
3. Preliminary Plat
4. Housing Product
5. Amenities
6. Development Agreement 

Termination
7. Conclusion



Waterford 
East

Waterford 
(Under Construction)

WATERFORD EAST – Location in Northeast Middleton

Hwy 44 (State St.)

D
u

ff Ln



Waterford East

D
u

ff
 L

n

AG – Canyon County

AG – Canyon County

R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3

R-3

Zoning Map



Waterford
(Under Construction)

Waterford East

Waverly Place

WATERFORD EAST & WATERFORD



Waterford East Preliminary Plat



Housing Product for 75’ Wide Lots



Waterford East Amenities

Community Playground

Paved Pathway along 
Mill Slough – 8’ wide 

20% Open 
Space



Waterford East – Development Agreement Termination

Waterford 
East

Waterford 
(Under Construction)

Hwy 44 (State St.)

D
u

ff Ln

Waterford 
(Under 

Construction)

Waterford East

Waverly Place

Area shown was once part 
of Paradise Valley 
Subdivision (2006). Since 
then has been broken up 
into 3 separate projects, 
each with the own 
separate Development 
Agreement.

New Development 
Agreements should be 
catered to each project 
specifically. 



Waterford –
Under 
Construction

E. 9th Street

FOOTHILL ROAD

Waterford East – Transportation Impact Contribution

Middleton Intersection Mitigation 
Fees: $288,828 due at Phase 1 Final 
Plat

Mid-Star Service Area Impact Fees: 
$5,050 per lot = $828,200

TOTAL: $1,117,028



Waterford East











 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 1c 



 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission, October 17, 2022  Page 1 of 4
  
 

MIDDLETON CITY PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION MINUTES 

OCTOBER 17, 2022 
 
Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call & Call to Order: The October 17, 2022, Planning and Zoning 
Commission Meeting was called to order by Vice Chairman Summers at 5:34 p.m. 
Commissioners Summers, Crofts, Christiansen and Tremble were present. Chairman Waltemate 
entered the meeting at 5:52 p.m. Planning & Zoning Official Roberta Stewart, Planning Deputy 
Clerk Jennica Reynolds and City Attorney Douglas Waterman were also present.  
 
Action Items: 
 

1. Consent Agenda (items of routine administrative business) 
a. Consider approving FCR for Black Powder Subdivision Project. 
b. Consider approving FCR for Waterford East Subdivision Project. 
 

Motion: Motion by Commissioner Christiansen to approve the consent agenda items 1a & b. 
Motion seconded by Commissioner Tremble and approved unanimously. 

 
2. Consider approving Resolution 476-22: "A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING AND 

ZONING COMMISSION FOR THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, VALIDATING 
CONFORMITY OF THE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN FOR THE MIDDLETON EAST 
DISTRICT URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT WITH THE CITY OF MIDDLETON'S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN." – Meghan Conrad 

 
Abbey Germaine from Elam & Burke, Jason VanGilder, City Public Works Director and 
Becky Crofts, City Administrator gave a presentation on the Urban Renewal Agency’s East 
District.  
 
Chairman Waltemate entered the meeting at 5:52 p.m. Vice Chairman Summers handed the 
balance of the meeting to the Chairman.  
 
Motion: Motion by Commissioner Christiansen to approve Resolution 476-22. Motion 
seconded by Vice Chairman Summers and approved unanimously. 

 
Information Item: 
 

1. Zoning law practice and procedures. – Attorney Douglas Waterman 
 
City Attorney gave a presentation on zoning law practice and procedures. 
 

Action Items: 
3. Public Hearing:  Application by Greater Middleton Parks & Recreation District for 

Special Use Permit with respect to the parcel located at 18 Minot Street (Parcel No. 
R17963).  The parcel is a vacant parcel located within City limits. It is .752 acres 
and is currently zoned R-3 (Single-Family Residential).  Applicant is requesting a 
Special Use Permit to use the site for the District operations for equipment 
storage and potential maintenance shop. The applicant is also requesting a waiver 
of the 8’ privacy fence required to surround a metal storage container (MCC 8-1-2). 
– Jennica Reynolds 

 



 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission, October 17, 2022  Page 2 of 4
  
 

Chairman Waltemate opened the public hearing at 6:59 p.m. 
 
City Staff Reynolds presented a PowerPoint presentation of the Staff Report (Exhibit 1) 
 
Applicant Representative Tim O’Meara, Greater Middleton Parks and Recreation District 
explained the intent of the District to use the property as a laydown yard for their 
construction and mowing equipment. They anticipate building a new storage shop/office in 
about 6 years. 
 
Chairman Waltemate opened public testimony at 7:28 p.m.  
None. 
Chairman Waltemate closed public testimony at 7:29 p.m. 
 
Discussion by Commissioners.  
 
Motion: Motion by Chairman Waltemate to approve the Findings of Facts as presented to 
the Commission. Motion seconded by Commissioner Christiansen and approved 
unanimously. 
 
Motion: Motion by Chairman Waltemate to accept the Conclusions of Law as presented by 
Staff. Motion seconded by Commissioner Tremble and approved unanimously.  
 
Motion: Motion by Commissioner Christiansen to approve the application by Greater 
Middleton Parks & Recreation District for Special Use Permit with respect to the parcel 
located at 18 Minot Street. And to approve the waiver of the 8’ privacy fence required to 
surround a metal storage container (MCC 8-1-2). Motion seconded by Commissioner 
Tremble and approved unanimously.  
 
Chairman Waltemate closed the public hearing at 7:36 p.m. 
 
4. Public Hearing:  Application by Bruce & Sherrill Stephens, represented by Luke & 

Sarah Stephens, for Variance with respect to the parcel located at TBD 3rd Street 
(Parcel No. R17787010).  The parcel is a vacant parcel located within City limits. It 
is .122 acres and is currently zoned R-4 (Single-Family).  Applicant is requesting a 
Variance to the setbacks as follows: 5’-12’ side set back reduced to 5’; 25’ garage 
setback reduced to 20’; 20’ front living space setback reduced to 15’; and 25’ rear 
setback reduced to 15’. This Variance would allow the applicant to construct a 
single-family home on the project site. – Jennica Reynolds    

       
 Chairman Waltemate opened the public hearing at 7:36 p.m. 
 

City Staff Reynolds presented a PowerPoint presentation of the Staff Report (Exhibit 2) 
 
City Attorney clarified questions from the commissioners that the Commission will not be 
setting a precedence if they grant the variance. Variances are looked at on a case by case 
basis.  
 
Applicant: Luke Stephens answered questions from the Commission regarding size of lot 
(5,319 sq ft) and the request for the variance. The home will be built for sale. It will be a new 
home, not intended to be historic. 
 



 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission, October 17, 2022  Page 3 of 4
  
 

Chairman Waltemate opened public testimony at 8:06 p.m. 
None 
Chairman Waltemate closed public testimony at 8:06 p.m. 
 
Discussion by Commission regarding the setbacks. 
 
Motion: Motion by Chairman Waltemate to approve the Findings of Facts as presented to 
the Commission. Motion seconded by Vice Chairman Summers and approved unanimously. 
 
Motion: Motion by Chairman Waltemate to accept the Conclusions of Law as presented by 
Staff. Motion seconded by Vice Chairman Summers and approved unanimously.  
 
Motion: Motion by Vice Chairman Summers to approve the application by Bruce & Sherrill 
Stephens, represented by Luke & Sarah Stephens, for Variance with respect to the parcel 
located at TBD 3rd Street (Parcel No. R17787010). The variance to the setbacks as follows: 
5’-12’ side set back reduced to 5’; 25’ garage setback reduced to 20’; 20’ front living space 
setback reduced to 15’; and 25’ rear setback reduced to 15’. Motion seconded by 
Commissioner Christiansen and approved unanimously.  
 
5. Public Hearing: Application by City of Middleton for amendment and revision to 

the following Middleton City Code sections:  MCC 1-3-1, 4-5-11, 5-4-1, Table 1, and 
5-4-4. – Roberta Stewart    

 
Chairman Waltemate opened the public hearing at 8:26 p.m. 
 
City Planner Stewart gave a Power Pointe presentation of the Staff Report (Exhibit 3) and 
explained the proposed amendments and revisions to Middleton City Code. 
 
Discussion by Commissioners and Stewart regarding the definition of flex space and food 
trucks. 
 
Chairman Waltemate opened public testimony at 9:20 p.m. 
 
Mike Graefe: Wants to understand definition of flex space and please don’t compare 
Middleton to Portland. 
 
Chairman Waltemate closed public testimony at 9:22 p.m. 
 
Discussion by Commission. 
 
Motion: Motion by Chairman Waltemate to approve the Findings of Facts as presented to 
the Commission. Motion seconded by Commissioner Christiansen and approved 
unanimously. 
 
Motion: Motion by Chairman Waltemate to accept the Conclusions of Law as presented by 
Staff. Motion seconded by Commissioner Tremble and approved unanimously.  
 
Motion: Motion by Commissioner Christiansen to recommend for approval to City Council 
the application by City of Middleton for amendment and revision to the following Middleton 
City Code sections:  MCC 1-3-1, 4-5-11, 5-4-1, Table 1, and 5-4-4.  With the condition that 
the term for “flex space” with the definition, Land Use Table, and intent of flex space be 



 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission, October 17, 2022  Page 4 of 4
  
 

tightened up through all zones with a specific emphasis on the Mixed-Use zone. The 
Commission does recommend approval of the Food Truck definition. Motion seconded by 
Commissioner Tremble and approved unanimously. 

 
Public Comments, Commission and Staff Comments 
 
Lori Smith: Asked for clarification on zoning map and Urban Renewal area. 
 
Mike Graefe: Question about where discussion regarding Gross Acres v.s. buildable acres has 
landed.  
 Chairman Waltemate said there is still discussion, but for now, the City is sticking with 
the code and 8,000 sq ft minimum lot size in R-3. 
 
Adjourn: Chairman Waltemate adjourned the meeting at 10:01 p.m. 

 
 

  
             
        Ray Waltemate, Chairman  
 
 
                                                               
ATTEST: Jennica Reynolds  

    Deputy Clerk, Planning  
 
Approved: November 14, 2022  



 

EXHIBIT “1” 



11/10/2022

1

Greater Middleton Parks 
& Recreation District

Special Use Permit Application
18 Minot Street – Tax Parcel No. R17963

Project Description & Application Request

 Application by Greater Middleton Parks and Recreation District (GMPRD) for special 
use permit to use the site for the District operations for equipment storage and 
potential maintenance shop at 18 Minot Street (Tax Parcel No. 17963). 

 The applicant is also requesting a waiver of the 8’ privacy fence required to 
surround a metal storage container (MCC 8-1-2). 

Current Zoning & 
Property Condition

 The property is within city 
limits and zoned R-3. The 
parcel is bordered on the 
north by property zoned R-4. 
East and west of the property 
is zoned R-3. Property to the 
south is zoned R-4T.

City Services
 City water and sewer are accessible to the project. Both are adjacent to the 

site. 

Special Use Permit
 Government and public utility buildings are allowed uses in the R-3 zone with a 

special use permit.

 The lots surrounding the 
parcel are mostly vacant with 
the exception of 103 Minot to 
the north which has a duplex 
kitty corner from the lot.

 The P&Z Commission makes the final decision on whether to deny or approve 
an application for special use permit (MCC 1-15-7).  The application does not 
proceed to City Council.

 Before the Commission can approve a special use permit application, it must 
make the following four findings: (1) the proposed use is not unreasonable or 
incompatible with other uses in the area, (2) the use is designated in the 
City’s Use Table MCC 5-4-1, Table 1 as a “special use”, (3) City services can be 
adequately extended to support the proposed use, and (4) the use is not in 
conflict with the Comprehensive Plan (MCC 1-15-7).

 Under MCC 1-15-7(C), the Commission may also mandate conditions of 
approval to mitigate any adverse impacts proposed by the special use. 

Staff Findings:
 As to finding No. 1, Planning Staff finds that the 

use is not unreasonable or incompatible with 
other uses in the area as the lots to the north, 
east and west are currently vacant, and the 
proposed use will not add significant traffic or 
noise to the neighborhood.  

 As to finding No. 2, Planning Staff finds that 
Government and public utility buildings are listed 
in “Use Table” (MCC 5-4-1, Table 1) for this zone. 

 As to finding No. 3, Planning Staff finds that city 
services, such as sewer and water, can be 
extended to the site as already shown above.

 As to finding 4, Planning Staff finds that the use is 
not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. 
Government buildings are listed as a “residential 
use, and the Comprehensive Plan, Future Land 
Use Map shows “residential use and mixed use”, 
for that area.

Request for Waiver
The applicant is requesting a waiver of the 8 ft. 
privacy fence needed to surround a metal 
storage container (MCC 8-1-2). They would like 
to place one on the site, so they can stop renting 
storage and have a place to store the park 
equipment in the interim until the shop can be 
built. Per Middleton City Code, Applicant will be 
required to obtain a full building permit prior to 
the storage container set up. 

MCC 1-15-2 allows for the deciding body in this 
case P&Z Commission to approve a waiver as 
part of the Special Use Permit application. 

1 2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9



11/10/2022

2

Comments & Applicant Info:
 Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners (Exhibit 1 of full staff report) 

Letter from Connie Elliot 

Letter from Tim O’Meara

 Comments from Agencies:  None

 Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff:   None

 Applicant Information:

GMPRD/Tim O’Meara 

310 N. Hawthorne Ave.

Middleton, Idaho 83644

gmprdtim@gmail.com

208-585-3461.

 The application was received August 26, 2022.

Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:

 Newspaper Notification 10/2/2022

 Radius notification mailed to

Adjacent landowners within 500’ 9/30/2022

 Circulation to Agencies 9/30/2022

 Sign Posting property 9/30/2022  

 Neighborhood Meeting 8/15/2022

 Planning Staff finds that all notice was appropriate and according to law.

Pertinent Codes & Standards

 Idaho Standards for Public Works 
Construction, the Middleton Supplement to 
the Idaho Standards for Public Works 
Construction, Middleton City Code 1-3, 1-14, 
1-15, 5-1, 8-1 and Idaho Code Title 67, 
Chapter 65.

Conclusions & Recommended Conditions 
of Approval:

 Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any final order must be based 
upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.  

 As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth findings of facts above in 
parentheses. 

 As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the Planning & Zoning 
Commission has the authority to hear the application and to approve or deny 
the special use permit with or without conditions.  Additionally, Planning Staff 
notes that all public notice requirements were met. Planning Staff further set 
forth the portions of the Idaho State Code and Middleton City Code to be 
considered in making an order or recommendation on the applications.   

Order
 If the Commission is inclined to approve the Special Use Permit Application, Staff 

recommends the following conditions of approval:

1. Applicant must comply with all dimensional standards and setbacks in 
the Middleton City Code for the R-3 zone.

 If the Commission denies the application, the Commission must state what steps 
the applicant can take to obtain approval. (MCC 1-15-7(C)

Prepared by Jennica Reynolds Dated: 10/17/2022
Deputy Clerk, Planning

10 11 12

13 14



 

EXHIBIT “2” 



11/10/2022

1

Stephens Variance 
Application

0 (TBD) 3rd St – Tax Parcel No. R1778701

Project Description & Application Request

 Application by Bruce & Sherrill Stephens, represented by Luke & Sarah 
Stephens, for Variance with respect to the parcel located at TBD 3rd Street 
(Parcel No. R17787010).  The parcel is a vacant parcel located within City 
limits. It is .122 acres and is currently zoned R-4 (Single-Family).  

 Applicant is requesting a Variance to the setbacks as follows: 5’-12’ side set 
back reduced to 5’; 25’ garage setback reduced to 20’; 20’ front living space 
setback reduced to 15’; and 25’ rear setback reduced to 15’. This Variance 
would allow the applicant to construct a single-family home on the project 
site.

Current Zoning & 
Property Condition

 The property is within city 
limits and zoned R-4 and 
surrounded by homes built in 
the R-4 zone. 

City Services
 City water is in 3rd Street adjacent to the property and City sewer is located in 

the alley also adjacent to the property. 

Variance Request
 The parcel is located in the historic Foote Addition (Subdivision) which was 

recorded in 1905. At that time the current parcel encompassed lots 15-17 of 
Block 3. Existing homes in the subdivision are not built to current R-4 setbacks. 
The alley in the back acts as a buffer so it could be reasonable to reduce the 
rear setbacks. The side and front setbacks could also be reduced per the 
request. It is likely that without some type of Variance approval the lot will not 
develop. 

 The Applicant is also requesting 
the requirement to install a 
sidewalk in front of the property 
be waived. Planning Staff 
recommends against this, 
because the way that City 
streets, and neighborhoods are 
improved is one parcel at a time 
extending sidewalks and proper 
road frontages. Removing this 
requirement would create an 
undue burden on taxpayers to 
pay for future needed 
sidewalks. Middleton City Code 
directs that developers should 
complete all frontage 
improvements to their property. 

 A sidewalk is such an 
improvement. 

Single-Family Residence
 The Applicant desires to build a two-story, 2,400 sq ft. single-family residence 

on the property. 

 The P&Z Commission makes the final decision on whether to deny or approve an 
application for Variance (MCC 1-15-6).  The application does not proceed to City 
Council.

 Before the Commission can approve a Variance, it must make the following five 
findings: 
(1) Enforcing the City Code would result in practical difficulty or unnecessary 

physical hardship inconsistent with the objectives of the zoning ordinance. 
(2) The site has extraordinary characteristics which do not apply generally to 

other properties classified in the same zoning district.
(3) Enforcing the City Code would deprive the applicant of privileges enjoyed by 

the owners of other properties classified in the same zoning district. 
(4) Approving the variance will not constitute a grant or special privilege 

inconsistent with the limitations on other properties classified in the same 
zoning district.

(5) Approval of the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or 
welfare or materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity.

 Under MCC 1-15-6(D), the Commission may also mandate conditions of approval 
to mitigate any adverse impacts proposed.

Staff Findings:
 As to finding No. 1, Planning Staff finds enforcing the setbacks set forth in the City Code 

for R-4 zone would indeed result in physical hardship when attempting to build any type 
of desirable home on the parcel. 

 As to finding No. 2, Planning Staff finds that the size of the lot is already non-conforming 
with city code regulations and as such the lot has extraordinary site characteristics that 
hamper its intended use. 

 As to finding No. 3, Planning Staff finds enforcing the City Code without some type of 
Variance will likely prohibit the applicant from developing the property in similar ways 
consistent in the existing neighborhood. 

 As to finding 4, Planning Staff finds that granting the variance will not allow for special 
privilege as the surrounding homes all have similar setbacks to what is being proposed. 

 As to finding 5, Planning Staff finds that the variance will not be detrimental to the public 
health, safety or welfare or create injury to the surrounding properties or improvements 
in the vicinity. Properties in the surrounding area are already improved and improving this 
parcel will only enhance the surrounding neighborhood. 

1 2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9



11/10/2022

2

Comments & Applicant Info:

 Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners: None

 Comments from Agencies:  None

 Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff:   None

 Applicant Information:

Bruce & Sherril Stephens/Sarah & Luke Stephens 

9290 Whalstead Dr.

Boise, ID 83704

snowcapconstruction@gmail.com

208-315-0469

The application was received on July 11, 2022.

Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:

 Newspaper Notification 10/2/2022

 Radius notification mailed to

Adjacent landowners within 500’ 9/30/2022

 Circulation to Agencies 9/30/2022

 Sign Posting property 9/30/2022  

 Neighborhood Meeting 6/21/2022

 Planning Staff finds that all notice was appropriate and according to law.

Pertinent Codes & Standards

 Idaho Standards for Public Works 
Construction, the Middleton Supplement to 
the Idaho standards for Public Works 
Construction, Middleton City Code 1-3, 1-14, 
1-15, 5-1, 8-1 and Idaho Code Title 67, 
Chapter 65.

Conclusions & Recommended Conditions 
of Approval:

 Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any final order must be based 
upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.  

 As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth findings of facts above in 
parentheses. 

 As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the Planning & Zoning 
Commission has the authority to hear the application and to approve or deny 
the Variance application with or without conditions.  Additionally, Planning 
Staff notes that all public notice requirements were met. Planning Staff 
further set forth the portions of the Idaho State Code and Middleton City Code 
to be considered in making an order or recommendation on the application. 

Order
 If the Commission is inclined to approve the Variance Application, Staff recommends the following 

conditions of approval:

1. Setbacks for construction of home to be the following: 

Side set back: 5 ft.

Garage setback: 20 ft.

Front living space setback: 15 ft.

Rear setback: 15 ft.

Maximum Height: 35 ft.

2. Applicant to construct improvements to the frontage by adding an attached 5 ft concrete 
sidewalk the entire frontage width. 

3. The City cannot guarantee the condition of the water main in 3rd Street due to its age and 
material construction.   The Owner shall assume all costs to make a satisfactory service tap 
into the existing main, which costs may include replacement of the portion of the waterline 
fronting the property in order to make a water-tight connection and any surface repairs 
connected therewith. All connections shall be witnessed and approved by the City’s Public Work 
representative.

4. Owner acknowledges that the existing water main is not sized to current City standards and 
therefore water flow quantity may be reduced at various times.  This condition will be more 
pronounced if the existing water main has been constructed of 2-inch galvanized piping.

If the Commission denies the 
application, the Commission 
must state what steps the 
applicant can take to obtain 
approval. (MCC 1-15-6(C)

Prepared by Jennica Reynolds

Deputy Clerk, Planning

10/17/2022

10 11 12

13 14 15



 

EXHIBIT “3” 



11/10/2022

1

Duplex Structures: (MCC 1-3-1 & 5-4-1, Table 1):

Remember this?

Proposed Amendments to 
Middleton City Code

Remember this?
o

CLEAN UP

Irrelevant definition “Dwelling, Two Family” to be deleted:

1-3-1: DEFINITIONS:

DWELLING, SINGLE-FAMILY, ATTACHED: A dwelling consisting of two or more 
dwelling units attached to one another by a common wall(s) with each dwelling unit 
being on a separate lot, commonly referred to as townhouses and/or townhomes.

DWELLING, TWO-FAMILY: A building designed for use and occupancy by two (2) 
families living independently of each other.

DWELLING UNIT: A building designed with complete independent living facilities 
for one or more persons including permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, 
cooking and sanitation.

 Hybrid mix of light industrial with 
commercial, retail and/or office 
uses.

 Enhanced front elevation – working 
rear elevation.  Customer service 
up front – roll up doors, 
warehousing and distribution in the 
rear.

 Allows differing uses to coexist 
together.  Example:  custom cabinet 
maker next to crossfit gym next to 
unique indoor/outdoor restaurant. 

 Twilight zone between industrial 
use and commercial use.

FLEX SPACE 
(MCC 1-3-1, 5-4-1, Table 1 & 4-5-11):

FLEX SPACE

Add more pics and inside pics of examples.  Explain 
better and in more depth. MCC 1-3-1 DEFINITIONS: 

Before “Flex Space” can be added to City Code, it must be defined in the “Definition” Section of the Code (MCC 1-3-1). After that, the defined term 
must be added to the Land Use Table (MCC 5-4-1, Table 1), where the use is deemed either “Allowed”, “Special Use Permit”, or “Prohibited.”

Proposed Definition:
FLEX SPACE:  a building used for small-scale warehousing and light industrial activity combined with office, retail, and/or other 
commercial uses.  Individual units or buildings may be used entirely for a commercial, retail, or office use, but any warehousing and/or 
light industrial use cannot exceed 70% of the total square footage of the building or individual unit.  Flex Space does not include mini-
warehouse storage, individual storage space for rent, or a use that involves a high level of truck and loading activity.

Front and street-side elevations are enhanced with more architectural detail, including variations in roof form, building height, and 
building materials in addition to an increased use of glass and architectural features involving wood, faux wood, and/or metal. Entries 
are easily identifiable with projecting or recessed forms and additional architectural detail.  

Loading docks and industrial roll-up/garage doors are located on only the rear and non-street sides of the flex space. However, glass 
sliding doors and architectural garage doors enhanced with significant amounts of glass, metal and/or faux wood can be located on 
the front elevation if they enhance the aesthetic of the front elevation.    

Land Use Table (MCC 5-4-1, Table 1):  (con’t)

CHANGE THIS TO SIMPLY POINT OUT IT WILL BE NEXT TO RESIDENTIAL IN M-U, AND THEY SHOULD 
CHANGE THAT IF THEY WANT.  Question:  Should Flex Space be allowed in a Mixed-Use Zone, even if it is 
allowed via a Special Use Permit which increases scrutiny?   The M-U Zone allows residential units to 
exist side-by-side with commercial uses.  “Flex Space” will introduce a light industrial use to that mix.    
If the sentiment is “no,” then the “S” must be removed from the M-U zone and the box must remain 
blank.

FLEX SPACE PARKING REQUIREMENT:   MCC 4-5-11(B) 

This parking requirement is a combination of the low number of parking stalls 
needed for an industrial use and the high number of stalls needed for a 
retail/commercial use.  One stall per 350 s.f., hits that “middle ground” between 
the two types of uses.

Added roads and clarity to ROW
Matrix

MOBILE FOOD TRUCK SERVICE   MCC 1-3-1 & 5-4-1, Table 1

First we define, then we add to the Land Use Table

MOBILE FOOD TRUCK SERVICE:  A vehicle or a readily portable structure used solely 
for the purpose of preparing and selling food and beverages to the public at large. Food 
trucks used for catering a single event for pay is not included in this definition.  

MCC 5-4-1, Table 1

Food Trucks are appropriate in commercial and industrial zones.  They can be intrusive in Residential Zones. In order to ensure 
that Food Truck Service would not be intrusive to residential neighborhoods found in the “Mixed-Use” Zone, Staff recommends 
footnote #9 to the Land Use Table as follows:

9. A Mobile Food Truck in the Mixed-Use (M-U) Zone cannot be parked closer than 250’ to the nearest residential unit.  
Mobile Food Truck Service is an allowed use at any school or public park located within any Residential Zone when 
tied to a specific event at the school or park. 

This Footnote 9 would also address special events at parks or schools located in a residential zone.  Mobile Food Truck Service 
would be allowed at the park or school if there is a special event at the park or school where food truck service is appropriate. This 
would apply to such things as a special outdoor market in a City park or end of school celebration in the school yard.  

1 2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9



11/10/2022

2

QUESTION: Food Trucks in Picadilly
Park & future River Walk Park?

\NO QUESTION. STICK WIT A-R. 
TELL THEM THAT PERMIT HANDLES 
ISSUE ON THE BACK SIDE

AR

AR

R-3

R-4

R-3

Landowner Notice (MCC 5-4-4(A):

A. Application: In addition to the application requirements in subsection 1-14-2A of this 
Code, an applicant shall file with the City: a copy of the complete application, fees, one 
(1) electronic full-size PDF copy, and two (2) full-sized copies of the preliminary plat with 
data as required in this section, and a title report or commitment for title insurance, 
including schedule B, indicating the nature of the applicant's ownership of land included 
in the preliminary plat. The City, at least fifteen (15) calendar days before the initial public 
hearing, shall mail to landowners within five three hundred feet (5300') of the external 
boundaries of the lands to be subdivided a notice that the City received an application, 
the number of acres and proposed number of residential, non-residential, and total lots, 
proposed land uses, and the dates and times that the application can be reviewed at City 
offices. After all City comments are addressed by the applicant, and prior to any public 
hearing on the plat, the applicant shall submit one (1) electronic full-size PDF copy to the 
City.

Comprehensive Plan:  Any changes to the City’s Zoning Ordinance or Subdivision Ordinance must be in 
compliance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho State Statute 67-6511 & MCC 1-14-3.)  

Planning Staff finds that all proposed changes are in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan 
because nothing proposed is in conflict with requirements shown on any Comprehensive Plan Map. 
Additionally, none of the proposed changes conflict with any “Goals, Objectives or Strategies” set forth 
in the Comprehensive Plan.  Finally, none of the proposed changes conflict with the requirements of 
LLUPA (the “Local Land Use Planning Act found at Idaho State Code, Title 67, Chapter 65). 

Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None.

Comments from Agencies: None.

Notices: Dates:

 Newspaper Notification 10/2/2022
 Circulation to Agencies 9/30/2022

Applicable Codes & Standards: Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65.
Middleton City Code 1-3, 4-5 & 5-4.

The Planning & Zoning Commission should base any decision or recommendation on 
general facts and conclusions of law.  

Planning Staff has set forth above findings that the proposed code changes do not 
conflict with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.

As to conclusions of law, Planning Staff finds that the Commission has the authority to 
hear this application and to approve or deny the application.  Additionally, Planning Staff 
notes that all public notice requirements were met. Planning Staff further set forth the 
portions of the Idaho State Code and Middleton City Code to be considered in making a 
decision on the application.   

If the Commission is inclined to recommend approval of the proposed code changes, 
Planning Staff does not recommend any conditions of approval.   

10 11 12

13 14











 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 1d 



 
 

1 
 

 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission 
Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law, and Decision & Order 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
In the Matter of the Request of Greater Middleton Parks and Recreation District (GMPRD) for 
special use permit to use the site for the District operations for equipment storage and 
potential maintenance shop at 18 Minot Street (Tax Parcel No. 17963). The applicant is also 
requesting a waiver of the 8’ privacy fence required to surround a metal storage container 
(MCC 8-1-2). 
 

A. Findings of Fact:   
 

1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022, which 
Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “1” and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

2. Process Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022, Exhibit “1”. 
 

3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 
2022, Exhibit “1”. 

 
4. Required Findings per Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65; Idaho Standards for 

Public Works Construction and Middleton Supplement thereto; and Middleton City 
Code 1-3, 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 8-1:  See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 
2022, Exhibit “1”. 
 

B. Conclusions of Law: 
 

1. That the Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission exercised the powers conferred 
upon it by the “Local Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, 
Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503). 
 

2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the 
governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning 
jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City 
Planning Staff and City Engineer. 

 
3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law.   

 
4. That Planning and Zoning Commission’s public hearing was conducted according to 

law, and the City has kept a record of the application and related documents.  
 

5. That codes and standards applicable to the application are the Idaho Standards for 
Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for 
Public Works Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-3,1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 8-1 and Idaho 
State Code Title 67, Chapter 65. 

 
6. That public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not 

impose expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.  
 

 



             
        

2 
 

7. That this recommendation is subject to the Conditions of Approval set forth in the 
attached Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022, Exhibit “1”. 

 
C. Decision and Order: 

 
Pursuant to the Planning & Zoning Commission’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 
1-5-5, and based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby 
ordered that: 
 

1. The Application by Greater Middleton Parks and Recreation District (GMPRD) for 
special use permit to use the site for the District operations for equipment storage and 
potential maintenance shop at 18 Minot Street (Tax Parcel No. 17963) is approved 
subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the October 17, 
2022 public hearing.  

2. The waiver request for the 8’ privacy fence is approved subject to the conditions of 
approval set forth in the Staff Report for the October 17, 2022 public hearing and 
additional condition that applicant comply with all dimensional standards and setbacks 
in the Middleton City Code for the R-3 zone.  
 

 
WRITTEN RECOMMENDATION APPROVED ON: November _____, 2022. 
 
 
 
            
      Ray Waltemate, Chairman 
      Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Jennica Reynolds 
Planning and Zoning Department 

 
 
 
 
 
Please take notice that pursuant to MCC 1-15-62(E), applicant shall have 15 days after a 
written order to appeal the order.  Additionally, pursuant to Idaho State Statute 67-6521, 
any affected person aggrieved by a final decision may, within 28 days after all remedies 
have been exhausted under local ordinances, seek judicial review as provided in chapter 
52, Title 67. Additionally, please take notice that Applicant has a right to request a 
regulatory taking analysis pursuant to Idaho State Statute section 67-8003.  

 

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH80/SECT67-8003


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 1e 



 
 

1 
 

 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission 
Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law, and Decision & Order 
 
 

 

 

 
In the Matter of the Request of by Bruce & Sherrill Stephens, represented by Luke & Sarah 
Stephens, for Variance as to setbacks with respect to the parcel located at TBD 3rd Street 
(Parcel No. R17787010).   
 

A. Findings of Fact:   
 

1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022, which 
Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “1” and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

2. Process Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022, Exhibit “1”. 
 

3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 
2022, Exhibit “1”. 

 
4. Required Findings per Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65; Idaho Standards for 

Public Works Construction and Middleton Supplement thereto; and Middleton City 
Code 1-3, 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 8-1:  See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 
2022, Exhibit “1”. 
 

B. Conclusions of Law: 
 

1. That the Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission exercised the powers conferred 
upon it by the “Local Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, 
Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503). 
 

2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the 
governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning 
jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City 
Planning Staff and City Engineer. 

 
3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law.   

 
4. That Planning and Zoning Commission’s public hearing was conducted according to 

law, and the City has kept a record of the application and related documents.  
 

5. That codes and standards applicable to the application are the Idaho Standards for 
Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for 
Public Works Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-3,1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 8-1 and Idaho 
State Code Title 67, Chapter 65. 

 
6. That public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not 

impose expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.  
 

7. That this recommendation is subject to the Conditions of Approval set forth in the 
attached Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022, Exhibit “1”. 

 



             
        

2 
 

C. Decision and Order: 
 

Pursuant to the Planning & Zoning Commission’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 
1-5-5, and based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby 
ordered that: 
 

The Application by Bruce & Sherrill Stephens, represented by Luke & Sarah Stephens, for 
Variance with respect to the parcel located at TBD 3rd Street (Parcel No. R17787010) is 
approved with the following conditions: 
 
1. Setbacks for construction of home to be the following:  

Side set back: 5 ft. 
Garage setback: 20 ft. 
Front living space setback: 15 ft. 
Rear setback: 15 ft. 
Maximum Height: 35 ft. 

2. Applicants to construct, at their own cost, improvements to the frontage by adding an 
attached 5 ft concrete sidewalk that will span the entire width of the parcel frontage.  

3. The City cannot guarantee the condition of the water main in 3rd Street due to its age 
and material construction.   The Owner shall assume all costs to make a satisfactory 
service tap into the existing main, which costs may include replacement of the portion 
of the waterline fronting the property in order to make a water-tight connection and any 
surface repairs connected therewith.   All connections shall be witnessed and approved 
by the City’s Public Work representative. 

4. Owner acknowledges that the existing water main is not sized to current City standards 
and therefore water flow quantity may be reduced at various times.  This condition will 
be more pronounced if the existing water main has been constructed of 2-inch 
galvanized piping. 
 

WRITTEN ORDER APPROVED ON: November _____, 2022. 
 
 
            
      Ray Waltemate, Chairman 
      Planning and Zoning Commission 
Attest: 
 
      
Jennica Reynolds 
Planning and Zoning Department 
 

Please take notice that pursuant to MCC 1-15-6(E), applicant shall have 15 days after a 
written order to appeal this order. Failure to appeal may invalidate a subsequent judicial 
appeal. Additionally, pursuant to Idaho State Statute 67-6521, any affected person 
aggrieved by a final decision may, within 28 days after all remedies have been exhausted 
under local ordinances, seek judicial review as provided in chapter 52, Title 67. 



             
        

3 
 

Additionally, please take notice that Applicant has a right to request a regulatory taking 
analysis pursuant to Idaho State Statute section 67-8003.  

 

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH80/SECT67-8003


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 1f 



 

 

1 
 

 

Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission 
Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law, and Recommendation 
 
 

 

 

 
 
In the Matter of the Request of the City of Middleton for amendment to the following City Codes:  
(a) 1-3-1, (b) 4-5-11  (c) 5-4-1, Table 1 and (d) 5-4-4: 
 

A. Findings of Fact:   
 

1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022, which 
Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

2. Process and Application Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 
2022 (Exhibit “A”). 

 
3. Required Findings per Middleton City Code 1-14-2(E)(7); Idaho State Statue Title 67, 

Chapter 65 and Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13; Idaho Standards for Public Works 
Construction; Middleton Supplement to the ISPWC; and Middleton City Code Sections 
1-5, 1-14, 5-1 and 5-4:   See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022 
(Exhibit “A”). 
 

B. Conclusions of Law: 
 

1. That the Planning & Zoning Commission and City of Middleton exercised the powers 
conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, 
Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503). 
 

2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the 
governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning 
jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City 
Planning Staff. 

 
3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law.   

 
4. That Planning and Zoning Commission’s public hearing was conducted according to 

law, and the City has kept a record of the application and related documents.  
 

5. That codes and standards pertinent to the application are Idaho State Statue Title 67, 
Chapter 65 and Middleton City Code Sections 1-3, 4-5, and 5-4. 

 
C. Decision and Recommendation: 

 
Pursuant to the Planning & Zoning Commission’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 
1-5-5, and based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby 
recommended that City Council approve the request of the City of Middleton to amend City 
Code sections (a) 1-3-1, (b) 4-5-11 (c) 5-4-1, Table 1, (d) 5-4-4 with the following condition of 
approval: 
 
 



             
        

2 
 

1. The definition for “Flex Space” in section 1-3-1 should be “tightened up” and revised to 
better define the type of industrial uses versus other uses to be contained in the “Flex 
Space”.   
 

2. City Council should also consider the advisability of allowing “Flex Space” uses in the 
Mixed-Use Zone where residential units are located.  

 
 
 

 
WRITTEN RECOMMENDATION APPROVED ON: November _____, 2022. 
 
 
 
            
      Ray Waltemate, Chairman 
      Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Roberta Stewart 
Planning and Zoning Official 

 



rstewart
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "A"

rstewart
Typewritten Text
      Staff Report



 

1 
 

             STAFF REVIEW AND REPORT 
       Middleton Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
 

 

 

 
Proposed Amendments to Middleton City Code 

 

       
 
A. Planning & Zoning Public Hearing Date: October 17, 2022 

B. Application Request: Request from City of Middleton for amendment and 
revision to the following Middleton City Code sections: (a) 1-3-1, (b) 4-5-11, (c) 5-4-1 
Table 1, and (d) 5-4-4. 

C. Requested Code Changes: 

1. Duplex Structure (MCC 1-3-1 & 5-4-1, Table 1):     

City Code requires that multi-family structures undergo review via a design review 
application and/or special use permit.  However, duplex structures on a single lot 
avoided this type of review because of wording in the Land Use Table located at 
MCC 5-4-1, Table 1. That Table currently states that only multi-family dwellings 
“exceeding” 2 units must undergo the special use permit process.  To fix the issue, 
City Staff proposes that the language be changed to state that any multi-family 
structure containing “2 or more” units must undergo the special use permit process.  

See proposed revision to MCC 5-4-1, Table 1 below:   



             
        

2 
 

 

As additional clean-up, a reference to “Dwelling, Two Family” in the Definitions 
section of the code should be removed. The specific verbiage does not correspond 
to any current code section, and it increases confusion in light of other definitions 
for multi-family housing.   

Accordingly, the following language should be stricken from Section 1-3-1 of the 
Code:  
 

DWELLING, SINGLE-FAMILY, ATTACHED: A dwelling 
consisting of two or more dwelling units attached to one 
another by a common wall(s) with each dwelling unit being on a 
separate lot, commonly referred to as townhouses and/or 
townhomes. 

DWELLING, TWO-FAMILY: A building designed for use and 
occupancy by two (2) families living independently of each 
other. 

DWELLING UNIT: A building designed with complete 
independent living facilities for one or more persons including 
permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking and 
sanitation. 

 

2. Flex Spaces (MCC 1-3-1, 5-4-1, Table 1, & 4-5-11): 

Because of the changing nature of commercial goods and services, many Cities 
are adding to their code a “hybrid” land use generally known as “flex space” or “flex 
building.”  A flex space is a building or project that combines a light industrial use 
with a commercial, office, and/or retail use.  The front of a flex space building 
should be attractive and appear commercial or retail, while the back may include 
industrial roll up doors and a space for warehousing and light manufacturing.   

Pretty on the front. Ugly in the rear.   

A typical flex space user would be a flooring company with a showroom up front 
but a distribution warehouse in the rear.  It is made for someone who experiences 
consumer traffic but still needs space for light processing, warehousing, or 
manufacturing. It also allows a unique mix of businesses to exist next to one 



             
        

3 
 

another. A flex space project may have a custom cabinet shop next to a crossfit 
gym next to an indoor/outdoor restaurant.  It is a “twilight zone” that neither an 
“Industrial Zone” nor “Commercial Zone” can completely address on its own.   

Some visual examples are below: 

 

 

                   

 



             
        

4 
 

 

Before “Flex Space” can be added to City Code, it must be defined in the 
“Definition” Section of the Code (MCC 1-3-1). After that, the defined term must be 
added to the Land Use Table (MCC 5-4-1, Table 1), where the use is deemed 
either “Allowed”, “Special Use Permit”, or “Prohibited.” 

City Staff proposes the following definition for “Flex Space” (MCC 1-3-1): 
 

FLEX SPACE:  a building used for small-scale warehousing and 
light industrial activity combined with office, retail, and/or other 
commercial uses.  Individual units or buildings may be used entirely 
for a commercial, retail, or office use, but any warehousing and/or 
light industrial use cannot exceed 70% of the total square footage 
of the building or individual unit.  Flex Space does not include mini-
warehouse storage, individual storage space for rent, or a use that 
involves a high level of truck and loading activity. 

Front and street-side elevations are enhanced with more 
architectural detail, including variations in roof form, building height, 
and building materials in addition to an increased use of glass and 
architectural features involving wood, faux wood, and/or metal.  
Entries are easily identifiable with projecting or recessed forms and 
additional architectural detail.   

Loading docks and industrial roll-up/garage doors are located on 
only the rear and non-street sides of the flex space. However, glass 
sliding doors and architectural garage doors enhanced with 
significant amounts of glass, metal and/or faux wood can be 
located on the front elevation if they enhance the aesthetic of the 
front elevation.     



             
        

5 
 

In the Land Use Table (MCC 5-4-1, Table 1), “Flex Space” will be deemed an 
“Allowable” use in the more intensive commercial and industrial zones; however, it 
should be deemed a “Special Use” in the Mixed-Use zone because a Mixed-Use 
zone combines residential homes with commercial businesses.  A special use 
process will ensure that the Flex Space use will not be overly intrusive to any 
residential uses within the zone.   

Staff proposes changing the Land Use Table as follows: 

 

A new land use will also require a City to consider parking requirements for the 
new use.  In light of that, Staff is proposing a change to the “Parking” code found at 
MCC 4-5-11(B).  Staff proposes that for Flex Space, Owner should provide one 
parking stall per 350 s.f. of gross floor space.  This parking requirement is a 
combination of the low number of parking stalls needed for an industrial use and 
the high number of stalls needed for a retail/commercial use.  One stall per 350 s.f., 
hits that “middle ground” between the two types of uses. 

To achieve this, Staff is proposing the following revision to MCC 4-5-11(B): 

                



             
        

6 
 

3. Mobile Food Truck Service  (MCC 1-3-1 & 5-4-1, Table 1): 

Mobile Food Truck Service is not a use that is defined in City Code, and it is not a 
“use” that is noted in the Land Use Table with respect to any particular zone.  In order 
to add the use to City Code, we will need to define the use and then add it to the Land 
Use Table found at MCC 5-4-1, Table 1. 

City Staff proposes defining “Mobile Food Truck Service” in the Definitions section 
(MCC 1-3-1) as follows: 
 

MOBILE FOOD TRUCK SERVICE:  A vehicle or a readily portable 
structure used solely for the purpose of preparing and selling 
food and beverages to the public at large. Food trucks used for 
catering a single event for pay is not included in this definition.   

City Staff proposes that Mobile Food Truck Service be “allowed” in any commercial or 
industrial zone; however, it should not be allowed in residential zones where it could 
disturb the peacefulness of a residential neighborhood.  In light of this, the proposed 
changes to the Land Use Table (MCC 5-4-1, Table 1) would look like this: 
 

 
 

In order to ensure that Food Truck Service would not be intrusive to residential 
neighborhoods found in the “Mixed-Use” Zone, Staff recommends a footnote to the 
Land Use Table as follows: 

 
9. A Mobile Food Truck in the Mixed-Use (M-U) Zone cannot be parked 

closer than 250’ to the nearest residential unit.  Mobile Food Truck 
Service is an allowed use at any school or public park located within any 
Residential Zone when tied to a specific event at the school or park.  

This Footnote 9 would also address special events at parks or schools located in a 
residential zone.  Mobile Food Truck Service would be allowed at the park or school if 
there is a special event at the park or school where food truck service is appropriate. 
This would apply to such things as a special outdoor market in a City park or end of 
school celebration in the school yard.   

 



             
        

7 
 

4. Landowner Notice (MCC 5-4-4(A): 
 

Middleton City Code requires all Developers to give notice and hold a neighborhood 
meeting prior to submitting a development application to the City.  For a number of 
years, the Developer was required to give such notice to only those owners/residents 
living within 300’ of the project boundary. In 2021, City Council approved an 
amendment to the Code to require Developers to give notice to landowners/residents 
within 500’ feet of a project boundary. 
 
At the time this change was made to the Code, City Staff failed to make the 
corresponding change to the Preliminary Plat code that requires City Staff to give 
landowner notice.  Currently, MCC 5-4-4(A) requires City Staff to notify landowners 
within 300’ of the project boundary of a new preliminary plat project. Staff is proposing 
that the distance be increased to 500’ to match the increase that was made to the 
Neighborhood Notice code.  The proposed change is as follows: 
 

A.   Application: In addition to the application requirements in 
subsection 1-14-2A of this Code, an applicant shall file with the City: a 
copy of the complete application, fees, one (1) electronic full-size PDF 
copy, and two (2) full-sized copies of the preliminary plat with data as 
required in this section, and a title report or commitment for title 
insurance, including schedule B, indicating the nature of the 
applicant's ownership of land included in the preliminary plat. The 
City, at least fifteen (15) calendar days before the initial public 
hearing, shall mail to landowners within five three hundred feet (5300') 
of the external boundaries of the lands to be subdivided a notice that 
the City received an application, the number of acres and proposed 
number of residential, non-residential, and total lots, proposed land 
uses, and the dates and times that the application can be reviewed at 
City offices. After all City comments are addressed by the applicant, 
and prior to any public hearing on the plat, the applicant shall submit 
one (1) electronic full-size PDF copy to the City. 

 
D. Comprehensive Plan:  Any changes to the City’s Zoning Ordinance or Subdivision 

Ordinance should be in compliance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho State 
Statute 67-6511 & MCC 1-14-3.)   
 
Planning Staff finds that all proposed changes are in compliance with the 
Comprehensive Plan because nothing proposed is in conflict with requirements shown 
on any Comprehensive Plan Map. Additionally, none of the proposed changes conflict 
with any “Goals, Objectives or Strategies” set forth in the Comprehensive Plan.  
Finally, none of the proposed changes conflict with the requirements of LLUPA (the 
“Local Land Use Planning Act found at Idaho State Code, Title 67, Chapter 65).  
 

  

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/middletonid/latest/middleton_id/0-0-0-476#JD_1-14-2


             
        

8 
 

E. Comments Received from Public:  None. 
 
F. Comments from Agencies: None. 
 
G. Notices        Dates: 

      

Newspaper Notification     10/2/2022 
 Circulation to Agencies     9/30/2022  
 
H. Applicable Codes and Standards: 

  
Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65. 
Middleton City Code 1-3, 4-5, and 5-4. 
 

I. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:  The Planning & Zoning 
Commission should base any decision or recommendation on general facts and 
conclusions of law.   
 
Planning Staff has set forth above findings that the proposed code changes do not 
conflict with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
As to conclusions of law, Planning Staff finds that the Commission has the authority to 
hear this application and to approve or deny the application.  Additionally, Planning 
Staff notes that all public notice requirements were met. Planning Staff further set forth 
the portions of the Idaho State Code and Middleton City Code to be considered in 
making a decision on the application.    
 
If the Commission is inclined to recommend approval of the proposed code changes, 
Planning Staff does not recommend any conditions of approval.    

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by Middleton P&Z Official, Roberta Stewart   Dated: 10/12/2022  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 2 



 

1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
                   Middleton Design Review Committee 
 

 
 

 
 

Design Review 
US Bank Kiosk – Ridley’s 430 E Main St. 

 

A. Design Review Meeting Date: November 14, 2022   

B. Applicant: Powerhouse Retail Services, 812 S Crowley Rd, Crowley TX 76036. Initial 
application was received 8/10/2022.  

C. Project Description: A US Bank walk up ATM Kiosk to be located in the parking lot of 
Ridley’s Family Market on the east side of the parking lot.  

 

             

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D. Zoning & Site Conditions:  The kiosk will be located in the Ridley’s parking lot. 
Ridley’s parcel is zoned M-U and a bank is an allowable use in the Mixed Use zone. 
 

  
 



             
        

2 
 

E. Architectural Character: Since this is just a kiosk and not an actual building, the 
required design elements for new construction are not applicable. The project will have 
a roof, with a sign on top.  

 

 
F. Parking: Not applicable as this is a walk-up kiosk 
 
G. Utilities: Not applicable  

H. Lighting:   Applicant provided a lighting schematic and photometric data. All exterior 
lighting is shielded downward per City Code. 
 

   
 

I. Landscaping:  There is no landscaping for this project, however the developer will 
demo existing Asphalt in the site area and pour a raised concrete pad in order to install 
the kiosk. Bollards will be installed on either side of the light poles for safety.  



             
        

3 
 

 

 
J. Applicable Codes and Standards:  Per MCC 1-15-8-1, a design review is required 

for all nonresidential structures in Middleton. The applicable Codes and Standards 
relevant to the review are MCC 1-15, 5-1, and 5-4. 

 
K. City Engineer: The City Engineer has reviewed the conceptual plan and had no 

comment.  
 

L. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval: 
 
Applicant’s Design Review application complies with the zoning and use for Mixed Use 
found in Middleton City Code. If the Design Review Committee is inclined to approve 
the application, City Planning Staff recommends that the approval have the following 
conditions attached: 

a. If the kiosk poses a safety hazard or proves to be problematic, the site will need 
to be modified and/or the kiosk removed.  
 
 
 

Prepared by Deputy Clerk, Planning - Jennica Reynolds Dated: November 1, 2022 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 3 



 

1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
                  Middleton Design Review Committee 
 
 

 

 

 
Design Review Application- Republic Storage 

 
A. Design Review Meeting Date: November 14, 2022   

B. Project Description: Additional four mini storage buildings to be constructed at the 
Republic Storage facility located at Duff Lane & Hwy 44 (23005 Duff Lane).  The four 
buildings will all be enclosed storage units, no covered RV storage.    

 

         
 

The Republic Storage project is part of a 40 acre project known as Middleton Town 
Square.  The Development Agreement for the Middleton Town Square project allows 
17 acres of mini/RV Storage and 20 acres of light commercial, including office, retail, 
and service business.  (See copy of Development Agreement attached as Exhibit 
“A”.)  In 2019, Applicant applied for a design review permit to construct all of the 
storage buildings.  The application was approved in May 2020. However, the design 
review permit expired 12 months later before Applicant could build the remaining four 
buildings. City Code requires Applicant to re-apply for design review permit before it 
can build the remaining four buildings. (MCC 1-15-8 and 1-15-8-7.) 

 



             
        

2 
 

C. Site Plan:  Applicant is proposing the addition of buildings 7 through 10 shown below 
on the site plan 

             
 

            
 

[Larger site plan is attached as Exhibit “B”] 
 



             
        

3 
 

D. Elevations and Architectural Character: Applicant is requesting permission to match 
the exterior design and elevation of the expired May 2020 approval.  The elevations 
will have no stone or detail, just metal siding and roll up doors 

 
 
 

 
 
This view (or elevation) is what will be seen from Duff Lane and the commercial part of 
the future Middleton Town Square. 



             
        

4 
 

        
This elevation is what will be seen from Hwy 44 and the future Cornell Street to the 
North. 
 
                 (Larger copies of elevation are attached as Exhibit “C”.)  
 
Although Applicant is requesting to match the current elevations already built pursuant 
to the expired May 2020 design review approval, it should be noted that City Council 
changed the Design Review Code in September 2020 to require enhanced elevations 
with a combination of four of the following design elements: stucco, brick/rock, accent 
features, metal siding, timberwork, public art feature, or gable roof.  Since the old 
design review permit expired, this new design review application is subject to the new 
code.  
 
There are at least three ways to handle the situation in light of the changed code.  
First, the Committee can default to the earlier design review approval, and for the sake 
of uniformity, the Committee can allow these last 4 buildings to be built exactly like the 
previous buildings, which means there are only two design elements present. 



             
        

5 
 

Second, The Committee can choose to follow the current code “100%” and require 
applicant to apply four design elements to these last 4 buildings. 
 
Third, and the solution recommended by Staff, would be to allow buildings 7, 8, and 9 
to match the existing buildings, but require Building 10, which is easily seen from Duff 
Lane and the commercial portion of the project, to have an enhanced elevation with 
three or more design elements, not just two.   
 
Also, Staff recommends that the north and south (end cap) elevations should be 
enhanced with more than just two elements. Applicant’s elevations in Exhibit “C” show 
only vertical siding and a gable roof.  There should be at least a third, or possibly a 4th, 
design element added to the end caps because they can be easily seen from Hwy 44 
and future Cornell Street.  
 

E. Zoning & Site Conditions:  The zoning for the parcel is currently C-2 or “light 
commercial”. Storage Units are no longer allowed in the C-2 Zone per amendments to 
the Land Use Table (MCC 5-4-1, Table 1.)  However, this applicant is entitled to still 
build storage units on site pursuant to their 2006 Development Agreement with the 
City.  The Development Agreement trumps the changed city code in this case.  
(Exhibit “A”).   
 

F. Adjacent Street Improvements: As part of the Middleton Town Square Development 
Agreement, Applicant is required to construct, at its own cost, all adjacent street 
improvements and dedicate the same to the City as part of the development 
requirements.  This is also a code requirement.   
 
Applicant improved the Hwy 44 frontage in 2020 as part of the earlier Design Review 
approval.  City is now requiring Applicant to improve and dedicate the 50’ half road 
portion of Duff Lane to facilitate the future improvements to the SH44 & Duff Lane 
intersection.  The ½ road portion of Duff Lane to be improved is shown on the 
Construction Drawing concept attached hereto as Exhibit “D”.  As a condition of 
approval to this design review, Applicant should be required to construct and dedicate 
the Duff Lane ½ road improvements prior to issuance of Certificate of Occupancy on 
the first building to be constructed. No certificate of occupancy should be issued until 
the roadway improvements are completed and dedicated.  
 

G. Pro-rata Traffic Fee:  Pursuant to the Middleton Town Square development 
agreement and the prior design review approval, Applicant is required to submit a 
traffic study for the entire project and pay Pro-Rata Traffic fees pursuant to MCC 5-4-3.  
Applicant has submitted the Traffic Study, and pursuant to the impact percentages set 
forth therein, Applicant will be required to pay $416,403 in pro-rata traffic fees.  (See 
Pro-Rata analysis attached as Exhibit “E” that covers both the storage project and the 
future commercial project.) 
 
As a condition of approval, Applicant should not be able to pick up the building permits 
for the four new buildings until it has paid the $416,403 pro-rata traffic fee due. 



             
        

6 
 

 
H. Utilities:  City services are already located on site and servicing the project. 
 
I. Parking:   Mini-Storage is considered an industrial use in Middleton (MCC 5-4-1, 

Table 1).  Parking for an industrial use is very low. It is one stall for every 1.5 
employees plus three additional parking stalls for visitors. (MCC 4-5-11.)  Applicant 
has provided this parking pursuant to the earlier design review approval. 
 

J. Lighting:   Lighting must be downlit, and this should be a condition of approval. 
 
K.  Applicable Codes and Standards:  Per MCC 1-15-8-1, a design review is required 

for all nonresidential structures in Middleton. The applicable Codes and Standards 
relevant to the review are MCC 1-15, 5-1, and 5-4. 
 

L. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval: 
 
Applicant’s Design Review application complies with dimensions and standards of the 
Middleton City Code. If the Design Review Committee is inclined to approve the 
application, City Planning Staff recommends that the following Conditions of Approval 
be made a part of the approval:  
 

1. Before City will issue a certificate of occupancy for the first building constructed, 
Applicant must, at its own cost, construct and dedicate the 50’ wide ½ road 
portion of Duff Lane sufficient to facilitate the future improvement of the Duff 
Lane & SH44 intersection.  The length of that Duff Lane improvement shall be 
as shown on the construction drawing attached hereto as Exhibit “D”.  The 
portion of improvements in the SH44 right of way as shown on Exhibit “D” will 
not be required and will be completed at a future date. 

2. Before City will issue the first building permit for the four proposed buildings, 
Applicant must pay the City the outstanding Pro-Rata Traffic fee of $416,403 as 
shown in the Pro-Rata Analysis attached hereto as Exhibit “E”. 

3. All outdoor lighting on site must be down lit or shielded downward. 
  

 
 

 
Prepared by Middleton Planning & Zoning Official, Roberts Stewart          November 9, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



             
        

7 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Middleton Town Square Development Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 10
01/28/2022 3:51 PM



Page 2 of 10
01/28/2022 3:51 PM



Page 3 of 10
01/28/2022 3:51 PM



Page 4 of 10
01/28/2022 3:51 PM



Page 5 of 10
01/28/2022 3:51 PM



Page 6 of 10
01/28/2022 3:51 PM



Page 7 of 10
01/28/2022 3:51 PM



Page 8 of 10
01/28/2022 3:51 PM



Page 9 of 10
01/28/2022 3:51 PM



Page 10 of 10
01/28/2022 3:51 PM



             
        

8 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

Site Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AutoCAD SHX Text
4 STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.31 ACRE OR 1,625,240 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
w/1 ACCESSIBLE STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL LANDSCAPE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SITE COVERAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROSS SITE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.7%%% PHASES 1 AND 2 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE ONE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
125,700 S.F.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SELF STORAGE ENCLOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL BUILDING AREA PHASE ONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
177,728 S.F.THIS PHASE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
50,460 S.F.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SELF STORAGE COVERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,568 S.F.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE TWO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
70,000 S.F.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SELF STORAGE ENCLOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
0 S.F.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SELF STORAGE COVERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL BUILDING AREA PHASE TWO

AutoCAD SHX Text
70,000 S.F.THIS PHASE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL BUILDING AREA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
247,728 S.F. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.39 ACRE OR  757,724 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE ONE SITE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.96 ACRE OR  864,457 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE TWO SITE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCLUDES THE DITCH AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO NEW PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE TWO LANDSCAPE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
119,295 S.F. OR 13.8%%% 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE TWO GRAVEL AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BO

AutoCAD SHX Text
BO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUFF LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGE   OVER THE CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING #7

AutoCAD SHX Text
24,000 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
48' x 500' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING #10

AutoCAD SHX Text
12,000 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
24' x 500' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING #9

AutoCAD SHX Text
28' x 500' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
14,000 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING #8

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' x 500' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
20,000 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWN CROSS HATCHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PYLON SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING OPEN RV PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING OPEN RV PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
21" EXISTING  SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
~

AutoCAD SHX Text
~

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MANHOLE RIM=2413.72'   18" INV(E,W)=2397.53'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.0' SEWER AND WATER EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOX CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MANHOLE RIM=2412.35'   12" INV(N,S)=2398.95'12" INV(N,S)=2398.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MANHOLE RIM=2413.12'   12" INV(N,S)=2398.71' 12" INV(N,S)=2398.71' IE(W) 10"=2399.60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MANHOLE RIM=2412.81'   12" INV(N,S)=2398.37'12" INV(N,S)=2398.37'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MANHOLE RIM=2412.49'   12" INV(N,S)=2398.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
21" EXISTING  SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21" EXISTING  SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
21" EXISTING  SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
7579.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1288.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD DIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1287.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD BRG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N85°22'42"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
9°44'27"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE HIGHWAY 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUFF LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIS OF BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1°01'54"W 1327.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°33'40"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0°57'11"E 1278.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N1°01'54"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1167.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°40'03"E 1308.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°40'03"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED STORAGE BUILDINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING OFFICE\RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 6'-0" CHAIN LINK FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING & SITE LIGHTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DECORATIVE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LANDSCAPE - SOD AND TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT USED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PROJECT SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) CUSTOMER PARKING STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTRUDED CURB SHOWN DOUBLE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'-0"EMERGENCY GATE IN CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 1:12 HANDICAPPED RAMP AND WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONNECT TO CITY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRONICALLY ACTUATED GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ SIREN OPERATING SYSTEM PER STAR CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECT:  LARSON ARCHITECTS, P.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
 210 MURRAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC STORAGE OF MIDDLETON LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
                BOISE, IDAHO 83714

AutoCAD SHX Text
                210 MURRAY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
 BOISE, IDAHO  83714

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM SIDE STREET SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
55'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN REVIEW IS REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE  EMERGENCY ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGE   OVER THE CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MANHOLE RIM=2409.05'   18" INV(E,W)=2396.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
END OF DECORATIVE  FENCE START OF  CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. PROVIDE FIRE EXTINGUISHERS AT ALL PROVIDE FIRE EXTINGUISHERS AT ALL BUILDINGS AS REQUIRED BY THE IFC  AND THE FIRE DEPARTMENT 2. PROVIDE KNOX BOX AS REQUIRED PROVIDE KNOX BOX AS REQUIRED 3. PROVIDE FIRE HYDRANT SPACING AT PROVIDE FIRE HYDRANT SPACING AT   400 FEET MAXIMUM SPACING400 FEET MAXIMUM SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
END OF DECORATIVE  FENCE START OF  CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) FIRE WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) FIRE WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) FIRE WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(0) FIRE WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE OWNER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO ADJUST THE BUILDING SIZES TO MEET THE MARKET DEMAND BUT WILL STILL MAINTAIN THE REQUIRED CITY OUTSIDE DESIGN FEATURES

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0" HIGH CHAINLINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0" HIGH CHAINLINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRRIGATION EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRRIGATION EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF 17.39 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
19,481 S.F. OR 2.6%%% 

AutoCAD SHX Text
490,515 S.F. OR 64.71%%% 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVED OR GRAVEL AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
PYLON SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER:  EMBASSY INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE TWO AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF WORK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDINGS ARE CROSS HATCHED AND THE NEW BUILDINGS ARE SHADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SP-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
JCL

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC STORAGE MIDDLETON

AutoCAD SHX Text
10150 HIGHWAY 44 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDDLETON,  IDAHO 83644

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
Larson Architects, P.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
210 Murray Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Boise, Idaho  83714

AutoCAD SHX Text
(208)  376-7502

AutoCAD SHX Text
Architecture and Real Estate Planning

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPYRIGHT  C   LARSON ARCHITECTS, P.A. 2022  DRAWINGS MAY NOT BE REUSED WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=50'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR-958

AutoCAD SHX Text
LICENSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF IDAHO

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. CORNEL LARSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDITION TO:

rstewart
Text Box
7

rstewart
Text Box
8

rstewart
Text Box
10

rstewart
Text Box
9



             
        

9 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 

Building Elevations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PENETRATIONS WITHIN  4'-0" EITHER SIDE OF FIRE WALL  SHOWN SHADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING #7 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PENETRATIONS WITHIN  4'-0" EITHER SIDE OF FIRE WALL  SHOWN SHADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING #7 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING #7 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PENETRATIONS WITHIN  4'-0" EITHER SIDE OF FIRE WALL  SHOWN SHADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PENETRATIONS WITHIN  4'-0" EITHER SIDE OF FIRE WALL  SHOWN SHADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING #7 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PENETRATIONS WITHIN  4'-0" EITHER SIDE OF FIRE WALL  SHOWN SHADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
JCL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR-958

AutoCAD SHX Text
LICENSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF IDAHO

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. CORNEL LARSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
Larson Architects, P.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
210 Murray Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Boise, Idaho  83714

AutoCAD SHX Text
(208)  376-7502

AutoCAD SHX Text
Architecture and Real Estate Planning

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPYRIGHT  C   LARSON ARCHITECTS, P.A. 2022  DRAWINGS MAY NOT BE REUSED WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE TWO: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC STORAGE MIDDLETON

AutoCAD SHX Text
10150 HIGHWAY 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDDLETON,  IDAHO 83644



AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL MATCH  BUILDING COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL MATCH  BUILDING COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PENETRATIONS WITHIN  4'-0" EITHER SIDE OF FIRE WALL  SHOWN SHADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING #8 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL EXISTING  BUILDING COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING #8 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING #8 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PENETRATIONS WITHIN  4'-0" EITHER SIDE OF FIRE WALL  SHOWN SHADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING #8 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
JCL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR-958

AutoCAD SHX Text
LICENSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF IDAHO

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. CORNEL LARSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
Larson Architects, P.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
210 Murray Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Boise, Idaho  83714

AutoCAD SHX Text
(208)  376-7502

AutoCAD SHX Text
Architecture and Real Estate Planning

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPYRIGHT  C   LARSON ARCHITECTS, P.A. 2022  DRAWINGS MAY NOT BE REUSED WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE TWO: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC STORAGE MIDDLETON

AutoCAD SHX Text
10150 HIGHWAY 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDDLETON,  IDAHO 83644



AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PENETRATIONS WITHIN  4'-0" EITHER SIDE OF FIRE WALL  SHOWN SHADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING #9 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING #9 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING #9 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PENETRATIONS WITHIN  4'-0" EITHER SIDE OF FIRE WALL  SHOWN SHADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PENETRATIONS WITHIN  4'-0" EITHER SIDE OF FIRE WALL  SHOWN SHADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING #9 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
JCL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR-958

AutoCAD SHX Text
LICENSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF IDAHO

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. CORNEL LARSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
Larson Architects, P.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
210 Murray Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Boise, Idaho  83714

AutoCAD SHX Text
(208)  376-7502

AutoCAD SHX Text
Architecture and Real Estate Planning

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPYRIGHT  C   LARSON ARCHITECTS, P.A. 2022  DRAWINGS MAY NOT BE REUSED WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE TWO: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC STORAGE MIDDLETON

AutoCAD SHX Text
10150 HIGHWAY 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDDLETON,  IDAHO 83644



AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL DOWN LIGHT  AT 75'-0" O.C. ADJUST FOR DOOR SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL DOWN LIGHT  AT 75'-0" O.C. ADJUST FOR DOOR SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING #10 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL DOWN LIGHT  AT 75'-0" O.C. ADJUST FOR DOOR SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING #10 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL DOWN LIGHT  AT 75'-0" O.C. ADJUST FOR DOOR SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL DOWN LIGHT  AT 75'-0" O.C. ADJUST FOR DOOR SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR PRE FINISHED  WHITE IN COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL DOWN LIGHT  AT 75'-0" O.C. ADJUST FOR DOOR SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL DOWN LIGHT  AT 75'-0" O.C. ADJUST FOR DOOR SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING #10 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCLOSED STORAGE BUILDING #10 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAP SEAM ROOFING TYPICAL MATCH WHITE  BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SIDING TYPICAL WHITE   BUILDING COLOR TRIM TO BE GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
JCL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR-958

AutoCAD SHX Text
LICENSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF IDAHO

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. CORNEL LARSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
Larson Architects, P.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
210 Murray Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Boise, Idaho  83714

AutoCAD SHX Text
(208)  376-7502

AutoCAD SHX Text
Architecture and Real Estate Planning

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPYRIGHT  C   LARSON ARCHITECTS, P.A. 2022  DRAWINGS MAY NOT BE REUSED WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE TWO: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC STORAGE MIDDLETON

AutoCAD SHX Text
10150 HIGHWAY 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDDLETON,  IDAHO 83644



AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL BUILDING CROSS SECTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
29 GA. METAL PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT PARTITION WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
26 GA. PAINTED METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOFING

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERIFY DOOR SIZE SEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOR PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEIGHT VARIES SEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOR PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. INTERIOR COLUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACING 5'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDE 2" OF METAL BUILDING INSULATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LITHONIA LIGHITNG

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAXW LED WALL LUMINAIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE LIGHTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL BUILDING FRAMING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FROM PRE ENGINEERED BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" COMPACT GRAVEL BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 BAR CONTINUOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWING

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 BAR VERTICAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" ASPHALT ON 6" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREFINISHED METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
NON RATED TYP. EXTERIOR FOOTING @ DOORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE FLOOR SLAB AT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOOR OPENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL BUILDING FRAMING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FROM PRE ENGINEERED BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" COMPACT GRAVEL BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 BAR CONTINUOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWING

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 BAR VERTICAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" ASPHALT ON 6" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT WALL LOCATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER STRUCTURAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREFINISHED METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
NON RATED TYP. EXTERIOR FOOTING @ WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE FLOOR SLAB AT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT WALL CUT METAL TO SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NON RATED TYP. EXTERIOR FOOTING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
FROM PRE ENGINEERED BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL BUILDING FRAMING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR BOLT SEE STRUCTURAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL WALL TRACK BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE-ENGINEERED BUILDING MANUF.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" COMPACT GRAVEL BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 BAR VERTICAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 BAR CONTINUOUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREFINISHED METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" X 9 1/2" SLOPE OR NOTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR OPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT WALL LOCATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER STRUCTURAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" X 9 1/2" SLOPE OR NOTCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR OPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL FRAMING TRACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FROM PRE ENGINEERED BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
THICKENED CONC. SLAB

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) HOUR FIRE WALL DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GYPSUM VENEER BASE APPLIED TO EACH SIDE OF 1 5/8" STEEL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUDS AT 24 O.C. WITH 1" TYPE S DRYWALL SCREWS AT 24" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE: 1/2 PROPRIETARY TYPE "X" GYPSUM WALL BOARD OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GYPSUM WALL BOARD STEEL STUDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GA FILE # WP 2800

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECOND LAYER OF 1/2" PROPRIETARY TYPE "X" GYPSUM WALLBOARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR GYPSUM VENEER APPLIED PARALLEL TO EACH SIDE WITH 1 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE S DRYWALL SCREWS AT 24" O.C.  FACE LAYER 1/2" PROPRIETARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "X" GYPSUM WALL BOARD OR GYPSUM VENEER BASE APPLIED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARALLEL OR AT RIGHT ANGLES TO EACH SIDE WITH 2 1/4" TYPE "G"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRYWALL SCREWS MIDWAY BETWEEN THE STUDS 1" ABOVE AND BELOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZONTAL  JOINTS STAGGERED 24" EACH LAYER AND SIDE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPRIETARY GYPSUM BOARD UNITED STATES GYPSUM COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" SHEET ROCK BRAND GYPSUM PANELS FIRECODE C CORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THICKNESS: 4 5/8" SEE MANUF. GAUGE AND SIZE OF STUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITING HEIGHT: REFER TO MANUF.

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX.  WEIGHT: 13 PSF

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE TEST:  ULR1319-138,139, 5-27-82 DESIGN U435

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD SOUND TEST:  SA-830112

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR FIRE PENETRATION REFER TO IBC 706.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUD SIZE AND GAUGE SHOWN ARE BASED ON MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED BY THE TESTING AGENCY OR MANUF. CRITERIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR THE LISTED ASSEMBLY.  CONTRACTOR SHALL REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANUF. DESIGN CRITERIA AND ADJUST THE GAUGE ACCORDINGLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR DIFFERENCES IN WALL HEIGHTS OR MANUF. VARIATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE ENGINEERING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF FRAMING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE ENGINEERING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL FRAMING TO SUPPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PURLINS ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRE ENGINEERING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL FRAMING TO SUPPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PURLINS ABOVE -ANCHOR BOLTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER METAL BUILDING MANUF.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" 20 GAUGE STEEL STUD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH 1/2" DIA.  X 6" ANCHOR BOLTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT 2'-6" O.C. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE FIRE SAFING INSULATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT TOP OF WALL AND SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGES WITH 3 HOUR RATED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAULKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR CAN SUBMIT A DIFFERENT UL ASSEMBLY TO THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CITY AND THE ARCHITECT AS AN ALTERNATE TO THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYSTEM SHOWN.  BOTH THE CITY AND THE ARCHITECT MUST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVE THE REVISED UL ASSEMBLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT ENCLOSED STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE K&H INDUSTRIES ASW BURN CLIPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT 3'-0" O.C. EACH SIDE OF FIRE WALL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTERNATE: USE CLARK DIETRICH ALUMINUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURN CLIP WITH H-STUD AREA SEPARATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL ASSEMBLY CLIP SPACING AT 3'-0" O.C. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) ONE INCH GYPSUM SHAFT WALL GYPSUM PANELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACE VERTICALLY AT 8'-0" AND TOP BEAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTACHED TO STEEL STUD WITH TEK SCREWS AND WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH 1 5/8" DRYWALL SCREWS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY FASTEN BURN CLIPS TO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE FIRE WALL AT THE SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
JCL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR-958

AutoCAD SHX Text
LICENSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF IDAHO

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. CORNEL LARSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-11-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
Larson Architects, P.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
210 Murray Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Boise, Idaho  83714

AutoCAD SHX Text
(208)  376-7502

AutoCAD SHX Text
Architecture and Real Estate Planning

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPYRIGHT  C   LARSON ARCHITECTS, P.A. 2022  DRAWINGS MAY NOT BE REUSED WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE TWO: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPUBLIC STORAGE MIDDLETON

AutoCAD SHX Text
10150 HIGHWAY 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDDLETON,  IDAHO 83644



             
        

10 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 
 
 

Duff Lane Roadway concept construction drawing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Duff Ln.
Canyon Canal

Highway 44

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

EP

EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP
EP

EP

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

48"G
I

60"GI 60"GI

PROJECT:
DATE:

NO. ITEM DATE

5725 NORTH DISCOVERY W
AY

BOISE, IDAHO 83713
PHONE (208) 639-6939

km
engllp.com

REVISIONS

SHEET NO.

CHECKED BY:

DRAW
N BY:

DESIGN BY:

WATERFORD SUBDIVSION NO. 2
MIDDLETON, ID

DUFF-HWY 44 INTERSECTION EXHIBIT
 
 

X1.1

20-226
4/20/20

KPM JW

M
SD/JW

 

P:\20-226\CAD\EXHIBITS\20-226 DUFF-HWY 44 INTERSECTION EXHIBIT.DWG, MATT DERR, 12/7/2021, DWG TO PDF.PC3, 22X34 L [PDF]

1 APPLIED PH.1 COMMENTS 10/26/21 
   
   
   
   
   
   

DUFF / HW
Y 44 INTERSECTION (Option 1)

0
20

40
60

Plan Scale: 1" = 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELCOME TO MIDDLETON SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
LID

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
LID

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T



             
        

11 
 

 
Exhibit “E” 

 
 

Pro-Rata Traffic Fee Analysis 
 



EXHIBIT E – Pro-Rata Traffic Fee Analysis 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 4 



 

 
 

 

City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

Regularly Scheduled Meetings in 2023 
 

 
All meetings are at 1103 W Main Street, Middleton, Idaho unless otherwise advised. 

Please contact the City Clerk to arrange for language or access assistance. 
 

City Council meetings begin at 5:30 p.m.  
Planning and Zoning meetings begin at 5:30 p.m.  

 
 

2023 

Months City Council Planning & Zoning 

January 4th, 18th 9th  

February 1st, 15th  13th  

March 1st, 15th  13th  

April 5th, 19th    10th  

May 3rd, 17th  8th  

June 7th, 21st  12th  

July 5th, 19th  10th 

August 2nd, 16th  14th  

September 6th, 20th   11th  

October 4th, 18th  16th (3RD   Monday)  

November 1st, 15th   13th  

December 6th, 20th  11th  

 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487, 1103 W Main Street, Middleton, ID  83644 

208-585-3133  Fax (208) 585-9601 

citmid@middletonidaho.us    

www.middleton.id.gov 


	ADP80F2.tmp
	In the Matter of the Request of Greater Middleton Parks and Recreation District (GMPRD) for special use permit to use the site for the District operations for equipment storage and potential maintenance shop at 18 Minot Street (Tax Parcel No. 17963). ...
	A. Findings of Fact:
	1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022, which Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “1” and incorporated herein by this reference.
	2. Process Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022, Exhibit “1”.
	3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022, Exhibit “1”.
	4. Required Findings per Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65; Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction and Middleton Supplement thereto; and Middleton City Code 1-3, 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 8-1:  See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, ...
	B. Conclusions of Law:
	1. That the Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission exercised the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503).
	2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City Planning S...
	3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law.
	4. That Planning and Zoning Commission’s public hearing was conducted according to law, and the City has kept a record of the application and related documents.
	5. That codes and standards applicable to the application are the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-3,1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 8-1 and Idaho ...

	6. That public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.
	7. That this recommendation is subject to the Conditions of Approval set forth in the attached Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022, Exhibit “1”.
	C. Decision and Order:
	Pursuant to the Planning & Zoning Commission’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-5, and based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby ordered that:
	1. The Application by Greater Middleton Parks and Recreation District (GMPRD) for special use permit to use the site for the District operations for equipment storage and potential maintenance shop at 18 Minot Street (Tax Parcel No. 17963) is approved...
	2. The waiver request for the 8’ privacy fence is approved subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the October 17, 2022 public hearing and additional condition that applicant comply with all dimensional standards and se...

	ADPE4CE.tmp
	In the Matter of the Request of by Bruce & Sherrill Stephens, represented by Luke & Sarah Stephens, for Variance as to setbacks with respect to the parcel located at TBD 3rd Street (Parcel No. R17787010).
	A. Findings of Fact:
	1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022, which Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “1” and incorporated herein by this reference.
	2. Process Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022, Exhibit “1”.
	3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022, Exhibit “1”.
	4. Required Findings per Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65; Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction and Middleton Supplement thereto; and Middleton City Code 1-3, 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 8-1:  See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, ...
	B. Conclusions of Law:
	1. That the Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission exercised the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503).
	2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City Planning S...
	3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law.
	4. That Planning and Zoning Commission’s public hearing was conducted according to law, and the City has kept a record of the application and related documents.
	5. That codes and standards applicable to the application are the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-3,1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 8-1 and Idaho ...

	6. That public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.
	7. That this recommendation is subject to the Conditions of Approval set forth in the attached Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022, Exhibit “1”.
	C. Decision and Order:
	Pursuant to the Planning & Zoning Commission’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-5, and based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby ordered that:
	The Application by Bruce & Sherrill Stephens, represented by Luke & Sarah Stephens, for Variance with respect to the parcel located at TBD 3rd Street (Parcel No. R17787010) is approved with the following conditions:
	1. Setbacks for construction of home to be the following:
	Side set back: 5 ft.
	Garage setback: 20 ft.
	Front living space setback: 15 ft.
	Rear setback: 15 ft.
	Maximum Height: 35 ft.
	2. Applicants to construct, at their own cost, improvements to the frontage by adding an attached 5 ft concrete sidewalk that will span the entire width of the parcel frontage.
	3. The City cannot guarantee the condition of the water main in 3rd Street due to its age and material construction.   The Owner shall assume all costs to make a satisfactory service tap into the existing main, which costs may include replacement of t...
	4. Owner acknowledges that the existing water main is not sized to current City standards and therefore water flow quantity may be reduced at various times.  This condition will be more pronounced if the existing water main has been constructed of 2-i...


	FCR- Code Amendment P&Z.pdf
	In the Matter of the Request of the City of Middleton for amendment to the following City Codes:  (a) 1-3-1, (b) 4-5-11  (c) 5-4-1, Table 1 and (d) 5-4-4:
	A. Findings of Fact:
	1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022, which Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated herein by this reference.
	2. Process and Application Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of October 17, 2022 (Exhibit “A”).
	3. Required Findings per Middleton City Code 1-14-2(E)(7); Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65 and Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13; Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction; Middleton Supplement to the ISPWC; and Middleton City Code Sections 1-5,...
	B. Conclusions of Law:
	1. That the Planning & Zoning Commission and City of Middleton exercised the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503).
	2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City Planning S...
	3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law.
	4. That Planning and Zoning Commission’s public hearing was conducted according to law, and the City has kept a record of the application and related documents.
	5. That codes and standards pertinent to the application are Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65 and Middleton City Code Sections 1-3, 4-5, and 5-4.
	C. Decision and Recommendation:
	Pursuant to the Planning & Zoning Commission’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-5, and based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby recommended that City Council approve the request of the City of Middlet...
	1. The definition for “Flex Space” in section 1-3-1 should be “tightened up” and revised to better define the type of industrial uses versus other uses to be contained in the “Flex Space”.
	2. City Council should also consider the advisability of allowing “Flex Space” uses in the Mixed-Use Zone where residential units are located.
	Blank Page
	Code Amendments - Staff Report PZ.pdf
	Proposed Amendments to Middleton City Code
	A. Planning & Zoning Public Hearing Date: October 17, 2022
	B. Application Request: Request from City of Middleton for amendment and revision to the following Middleton City Code sections: (a) 1-3-1, (b) 4-5-11, (c) 5-4-1 Table 1, and (d) 5-4-4.
	C. Requested Code Changes:
	1. Duplex Structure (MCC 1-3-1 & 5-4-1, Table 1):
	City Code requires that multi-family structures undergo review via a design review application and/or special use permit.  However, duplex structures on a single lot avoided this type of review because of wording in the Land Use Table located at MCC 5...
	See proposed revision to MCC 5-4-1, Table 1 below:
	As additional clean-up, a reference to “Dwelling, Two Family” in the Definitions section of the code should be removed. The specific verbiage does not correspond to any current code section, and it increases confusion in light of other definitions for...
	Accordingly, the following language should be stricken from Section 1-3-1 of the Code:
	2. Flex Spaces (MCC 1-3-1, 5-4-1, Table 1, & 4-5-11):
	Because of the changing nature of commercial goods and services, many Cities are adding to their code a “hybrid” land use generally known as “flex space” or “flex building.”  A flex space is a building or project that combines a light industrial use w...
	Pretty on the front. Ugly in the rear.
	A typical flex space user would be a flooring company with a showroom up front but a distribution warehouse in the rear.  It is made for someone who experiences consumer traffic but still needs space for light processing, warehousing, or manufacturing...
	Some visual examples are below:
	Before “Flex Space” can be added to City Code, it must be defined in the “Definition” Section of the Code (MCC 1-3-1). After that, the defined term must be added to the Land Use Table (MCC 5-4-1, Table 1), where the use is deemed either “Allowed”, “Sp...
	City Staff proposes the following definition for “Flex Space” (MCC 1-3-1):
	In the Land Use Table (MCC 5-4-1, Table 1), “Flex Space” will be deemed an “Allowable” use in the more intensive commercial and industrial zones; however, it should be deemed a “Special Use” in the Mixed-Use zone because a Mixed-Use zone combines resi...
	Staff proposes changing the Land Use Table as follows:
	A new land use will also require a City to consider parking requirements for the new use.  In light of that, Staff is proposing a change to the “Parking” code found at MCC 4-5-11(B).  Staff proposes that for Flex Space, Owner should provide one parkin...
	To achieve this, Staff is proposing the following revision to MCC 4-5-11(B):
	3. Mobile Food Truck Service  (MCC 1-3-1 & 5-4-1, Table 1):
	Mobile Food Truck Service is not a use that is defined in City Code, and it is not a “use” that is noted in the Land Use Table with respect to any particular zone.  In order to add the use to City Code, we will need to define the use and then add it t...
	City Staff proposes defining “Mobile Food Truck Service” in the Definitions section (MCC 1-3-1) as follows:
	City Staff proposes that Mobile Food Truck Service be “allowed” in any commercial or industrial zone; however, it should not be allowed in residential zones where it could disturb the peacefulness of a residential neighborhood.  In light of this, the ...
	In order to ensure that Food Truck Service would not be intrusive to residential neighborhoods found in the “Mixed-Use” Zone, Staff recommends a footnote to the Land Use Table as follows:
	This Footnote 9 would also address special events at parks or schools located in a residential zone.  Mobile Food Truck Service would be allowed at the park or school if there is a special event at the park or school where food truck service is approp...
	4. Landowner Notice (MCC 5-4-4(A):
	Middleton City Code requires all Developers to give notice and hold a neighborhood meeting prior to submitting a development application to the City.  For a number of years, the Developer was required to give such notice to only those owners/residents...
	At the time this change was made to the Code, City Staff failed to make the corresponding change to the Preliminary Plat code that requires City Staff to give landowner notice.  Currently, MCC 5-4-4(A) requires City Staff to notify landowners within 3...
	D. Comprehensive Plan:  Any changes to the City’s Zoning Ordinance or Subdivision Ordinance should be in compliance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho State Statute 67-6511 & MCC 1-14-3.)
	Planning Staff finds that all proposed changes are in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan because nothing proposed is in conflict with requirements shown on any Comprehensive Plan Map. Additionally, none of the proposed changes conflict with any “G...
	E. Comments Received from Public:  None.

	F. Comments from Agencies: None.
	G. Notices        Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     10/2/2022
	Circulation to Agencies     9/30/2022
	H. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65.
	Middleton City Code 1-3, 4-5, and 5-4.
	I. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:  The Planning & Zoning Commission should base any decision or recommendation on general facts and conclusions of law.
	Planning Staff has set forth above findings that the proposed code changes do not conflict with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.
	As to conclusions of law, Planning Staff finds that the Commission has the authority to hear this application and to approve or deny the application.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requirements were met. Planning Staff furt...
	If the Commission is inclined to recommend approval of the proposed code changes, Planning Staff does not recommend any conditions of approval.
	Prepared by Middleton P&Z Official, Roberta Stewart   Dated: 10/12/2022



	Staff Report - Republic Storage DR.pdf
	Design Review Application- Republic Storage
	A. Design Review Meeting Date: November 14, 2022
	B. Project Description: Additional four mini storage buildings to be constructed at the Republic Storage facility located at Duff Lane & Hwy 44 (23005 Duff Lane).  The four buildings will all be enclosed storage units, no covered RV storage.
	The Republic Storage project is part of a 40 acre project known as Middleton Town Square.  The Development Agreement for the Middleton Town Square project allows 17 acres of mini/RV Storage and 20 acres of light commercial, including office, retail, a...
	C. Site Plan:  Applicant is proposing the addition of buildings 7 through 10 shown below on the site plan
	D. Elevations and Architectural Character: Applicant is requesting permission to match the exterior design and elevation of the expired May 2020 approval.  The elevations will have no stone or detail, just metal siding and roll up doors
	This view (or elevation) is what will be seen from Duff Lane and the commercial part of the future Middleton Town Square.
	This elevation is what will be seen from Hwy 44 and the future Cornell Street to the North.
	(Larger copies of elevation are attached as Exhibit “C”.)
	Although Applicant is requesting to match the current elevations already built pursuant to the expired May 2020 design review approval, it should be noted that City Council changed the Design Review Code in September 2020 to require enhanced elevation...
	There are at least three ways to handle the situation in light of the changed code.  First, the Committee can default to the earlier design review approval, and for the sake of uniformity, the Committee can allow these last 4 buildings to be built exa...
	Second, The Committee can choose to follow the current code “100%” and require applicant to apply four design elements to these last 4 buildings.
	Third, and the solution recommended by Staff, would be to allow buildings 7, 8, and 9 to match the existing buildings, but require Building 10, which is easily seen from Duff Lane and the commercial portion of the project, to have an enhanced elevatio...
	Also, Staff recommends that the north and south (end cap) elevations should be enhanced with more than just two elements. Applicant’s elevations in Exhibit “C” show only vertical siding and a gable roof.  There should be at least a third, or possibly ...
	E. Zoning & Site Conditions:  The zoning for the parcel is currently C-2 or “light commercial”. Storage Units are no longer allowed in the C-2 Zone per amendments to the Land Use Table (MCC 5-4-1, Table 1.)  However, this applicant is entitled to stil...
	F. Adjacent Street Improvements: As part of the Middleton Town Square Development Agreement, Applicant is required to construct, at its own cost, all adjacent street improvements and dedicate the same to the City as part of the development requirement...
	Applicant improved the Hwy 44 frontage in 2020 as part of the earlier Design Review approval.  City is now requiring Applicant to improve and dedicate the 50’ half road portion of Duff Lane to facilitate the future improvements to the SH44 & Duff Lane...
	G. Pro-rata Traffic Fee:  Pursuant to the Middleton Town Square development agreement and the prior design review approval, Applicant is required to submit a traffic study for the entire project and pay Pro-Rata Traffic fees pursuant to MCC 5-4-3.  Ap...
	As a condition of approval, Applicant should not be able to pick up the building permits for the four new buildings until it has paid the $416,403 pro-rata traffic fee due.
	H. Utilities:  City services are already located on site and servicing the project.
	I. Parking:   Mini-Storage is considered an industrial use in Middleton (MCC 5-4-1, Table 1).  Parking for an industrial use is very low. It is one stall for every 1.5 employees plus three additional parking stalls for visitors. (MCC 4-5-11.)  Applica...
	J. Lighting:   Lighting must be downlit, and this should be a condition of approval.
	K.  Applicable Codes and Standards:  Per MCC 1-15-8-1, a design review is required for all nonresidential structures in Middleton. The applicable Codes and Standards relevant to the review are MCC 1-15, 5-1, and 5-4.
	L. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	Applicant’s Design Review application complies with dimensions and standards of the Middleton City Code. If the Design Review Committee is inclined to approve the application, City Planning Staff recommends that the following Conditions of Approval be...
	1. Before City will issue a certificate of occupancy for the first building constructed, Applicant must, at its own cost, construct and dedicate the 50’ wide ½ road portion of Duff Lane sufficient to facilitate the future improvement of the Duff Lane ...
	2. Before City will issue the first building permit for the four proposed buildings, Applicant must pay the City the outstanding Pro-Rata Traffic fee of $416,403 as shown in the Pro-Rata Analysis attached hereto as Exhibit “E”.
	3. All outdoor lighting on site must be down lit or shielded downward.
	Prepared by Middleton Planning & Zoning Official, Roberts Stewart          November 9, 2022
	EXHIBIT “A”
	Middleton Town Square Development Agreement
	EXHIBIT “B”
	Site Plan
	EXHIBIT “C”
	Building Elevations
	EXHIBIT “D”
	Duff Lane Roadway concept construction drawing
	Exhibit “E”
	Pro-Rata Traffic Fee Analysis

	Updated site plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SP-1
	OLE1



	A-5_Building 7_Elevations.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A5


	A-6_Building 8_Elevations.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A6


	A-7_Building 9_Elevations.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A7


	A-8_Building 10_Elevations.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A8


	A-9_Building Details.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A9


	Exhiibit road design.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	22x34L






